
r{t
nf;

ri
ffir

Select Gommittee on Affordable
Healthcare Access

Monday, Janu ary 11, 2016
1:30 PM - 3:30 PM

Sumner Hall (404 HOB)

Steve Crisafulli
Speaker

Jose Oliva
Chair



Start Date and Time:

End Date and Time:

Location:
Duration:

Committee Meeting Notice
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Select Committee on Affordable Healthcare Access

Monday, January Lt,2016 01:30 pm

Monday, January ll,2016 03:30 pm

Sumner Hall (404 HOB)

2.00 hrs

Consideration of the following bill(s):

HB 1061 Nurse Licensure Compact by Pigman

HB 1063 Public Records and Meetings/Nurse Licensure Compact by Pigman

Workshop on Health Care Price & Quality Transparency and Hospital Efficiency

--Vivian Lee, M.D., PhD, MBA; CEO, University of Utah Health Care; Dean, University of Utah School of
Medicine
--Denise Love, BSN, MBA, Executive Director, National Association of Health Data Organizations; Co-Chair,
All Payer Claims Database Council
--Molly McKinstry, Deputy Secretary, Agency for Health Care Administration

Pursuant to rule 7.12, the deadline for amendments to bills on the agenda by non-appointed members is

6:00 p.m., Friday, January 8, 2016.

By request of the chair, all committee members are asked to have amendments to bills on the agenda
submitted to staff by 6:00 p.m., Friday, January B, 2016,

NOTICE FINALIZED on O1.l04l2O16 3:52PM by Iseminger.Bobbye

OL/04/2076 3:52:28PM Leagis @ Page 1 of 1



J-
@

o
o\



BILL #: HB 1061
SPONSOR(S): Pigman
TIED BILLS: HB 1063

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

Nurse Licensure Compact

!DEN./S!M. BILLS:

REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR or

BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF

1) Select Committee on Affordable Healthcare
Access

CalamasS

2) Health Care Appropriations Subcommittee

3) Health & Human Services Committee

SUMMARY ANALYSIS
The Nurse Licensure Compact (NLC or compact) is a multi-state agreement that establishes a mutual recognition system
for the licensure of registered nurses and licensed practical or vocational nurses. ln 2015, the National Council of Siate
Boards of Nursing adopted revised model legislation for the NLC and required any state entering the NLC to adopt the
revised model legislation. The bill authorizes Florida to enter into the revised NLC.

Under the NLC, a nurse who is issued a multistate license from a state that is a party to the compact is permitted to
practice in any other state that is also a party to the compact. However, the nurse must comply with the'practice laws of
the state in which he or she is practicing or where the patient is located. A party state may continue to issue a single-state
license, authorizing practice only in that state.

Pursuant to the bill, a nurse who applies for or renews a multistate license in Florida must meet the minimum
requirements of the NL^C and any other requirements set by the Florida Board of Nursing (board) within the Department of
Health (DOH). The NLC does not change the current licensure requirements under cn. 4O+, f .S., tne Nurse practice Act.

Under the NLC, a state may take adverse action against the multistate licensure privilege of any nurse practicing in that
state. The home state has the exclusive authority to take adverse action against the home state license, including
revocation and suspension. The NLC requires all states to report to a coordinated licensure information system 1bt-tS;, att
adverse actions taken against a nurse's license or multistate licensure practice privilege, any current significant
investigative information, and denials of applications. All party states may access the e LIS to see liceniure and
disciplinary information for all nurses licensed in the party states. A state may designate the information it contributes to
the CLIS as confidential, prohibiting disclosure to nonparty states.

The NLC establishes the lnterstate Commission of Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators (commission) to oversee the
operation of the NLC. Each party state's compact administrator (the head of the state's licensing board or designee) must
participate as a member of the commission. The NLC grants the commission authority to promu-lgate uniform rutes io,
among other things, facilitate and coordinate the implementation and administration oi the NLC. ihe commission may
also take any necessary action to secure the compliance of a party state that fails to meet the obligations of the NLC,
including termination of membership after exhausting all means of securing compliance.

The NLC provides for the qualified immunity, defense, and indemnification of the administrators, officers, executive
director, representatives, and employees of the commission in civil actions that arise under certain circumstances. The
NLC does not abrogate or waive the sovereign immunity of its party states.

The bill also requires the DOH to conspicuously designate each nurse license as a multistate license or a single-state
license. The bill requires the Florida Center for Nursing to analyze the impact of the state's participation in the NLC and
authorizes the center to request certain information held by the board to determine such impact.

The bill will have an indeterminate, negative fiscal impact on the DOH.

The bill takes effect on December 31,2018, or upon enactment of the revised NLC into law by 26 other states, whichever
occurs first.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAIII E: hl 06'I.SCAHA.DOCX
DATE:11412016



FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECTOF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Current Situation

Health Care Professional Shortaoe

There is currently a health care provider shortage in the U.S.l This shortage is predicted to continue
into the foreseeable future and will likely worsen with the aging-and groMh of the U.S. population2 and
the passage of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act.3 Aging populations create a
disproportionately higher health care demand.4 Additionally, as morelndividuals qualify for health care
benefits, there will necessarily be a greater demand for more health care professionals to provide these
services.

According to a 2010 report prepared by the Florida Center for Nursing, Florida was projected to
experience a shortage of more than 62,800 nurses by 2025.5 ln an effort to increase the number of
students enrolled in nursing programs and address the projected shortage, the Legislature streamlined
the process used by the board to approve and monitor nursing education programs.6 As a result, the
number of nursing education programs in this state has increase by 114o/o.7 Due to the new capacity,
overall student enrollment grew and the number of students graduating increased from 2012-2013-
2013-201p,.8

With an increasing number of new graduates who will enter the workforce, the long term shortage of
nurses ?Ppears to be decreasing. lt is projected that Florida will have a small surplus of RNs and LPNs
in 2025.e The South, in general,ls projectLd to continue to have a shortage of nurses. However, this
may not be an accurate reflection of the need for nurses because the rapidly changing healthcare
delivery system is redefining the role of the nursing workforce.l0

1 For example, as of November 14,2013, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services has designated 6,100 Primary Care
Health Professional Shortage Area (HPSA) (requiring 8,200 additional primary care physicians to eliminate the shortage), 4,900 Dental
HPSAs (requiring 7,300 additional dentists to eliminate the shortage), and 4,000 Mental Health HPSAs (requiring 2,80b additional
psychiatrists to eliminate the shortage). U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services
Administration, available af http://www.hrsa.qov/shortaoe/ (last visited January 4,2016).
' According to the U.S. Census Bureau, the U.S population is expected to increase by almost 100 million between 2014 and 2060, and
by 2030, one in five Americans is projected to be 65 and over. Sandra L. Colby & Jennifer M. Ortman, U.S. Census Bureau, Projections
of the Size and Composition of the U.S.Population: 2014 to 2060 (March 2015), avaitable at
httD://webcache.oooqleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:NgN3mfOmlzYJ:httos://www.census.qov/contenUdam/Census/librarv/oublicat

ions/201S/demo/p25-1 143.odf+&cd=1&hl=en&ct=clnk&ol=us (last visited January 4,2016).
" Depaftment of Health and Human Servlces Sfrategic Plan: Goal 1: Strengthen Health Care, U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, available at http:i/www.hhs.qov/secretarv/abouUqoal5.html (last visited on January 4,2016).
' One analysis measured current primary care utilization (office visits) and projected the impact of population increases, aging, and
insured status changes. The study found that the total number of office visits to primary care physicians will increase from 462 million
in 2008 to 565 million in 2025, and (because of aging) the average number of visits will increase from 1.60 to 1.66. The study
concluded that the U.S. will require 51,880 additional primary care physicians by 2025. Petterson, Stephen M., et al., "projeciing U.S.
Primary Care Physician Workforce Needs: 2010-2025", Annals of Family Medicine, vol. 10, No. 6 (November/Decembe rZOIZ),-avaitabte
at http://www.annfammed.oro/contenUl0/6/503.full.odf+html (last visited on January 4,2016).
" Florida Center for Nursing, RN and LPN Supply and Demand Forecasts, 2010-2025: Floida's Projected Nursing Shortage in View of
fhe Recession and Healthcare Reform (Oct.2010), available at

(last visited January 4,2016).
Chapter 2009-168, Laws of Fla. Additional statutory amendments were made pursuant to chs. 2O1O-37 and 2014-92, Laws of Fla.

'OPPnGA, Florida;s Nursing Education Programs Continue to Expand in 2014,ReporlNo. 15-04 (Jan.2015, rev. Aug. 2015),
available af htto://www.oppaqa.state.fl.us/Summarv.aspx?reoortNum=15-04 (last visited January 4,2016).
o ld.
e U.S. Oepl of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration, Bureau of Health Workforce, National
Center for Health Workforce Analysis, The Future of the Nursing Workforce: National- and State-Level Projections, 2012-2025,
(December 2014), available af http://bhpr.hrsa.qov/healthworkforce/supplvdemand/nursino/workforceproiettions/ (last visited January 4,
2016).
to rd.'
STORAGE NAM E: h1 061.SCAHA.DOCX
DATE:11412O16

PAGE:2



Currently, Florida healthcare providers rely on temporary nurses when sufficient nursing staff is not
available to meet the demand or there is a temporary need for specialty nursing.ll Due to its popularity
as a tourist destination, Florida experiences a cyclical need for additional nursing resources in winter
months. For example, a temporary nursing agency has indicated that in November the request for
temporary nurses increases by more than 200 percent for nurses to work the winter months.12

Nurse Licensure in Florida

The Nurse Practice Act, chapter 464, F.S., governs the licensure and regulation of nurses in Florida.
The Department of Health (DOH) is the licensing agency and the Board of Nursing (BON or board) is
the regulatory authority. Ihe BON is comprised of 13 members appointed by the Governor and
confirmed by the Senate.13

Applicants may apply to the DOH to be licensed as a registered nurse (RN) or a licensed practical
nurse (LPN). An RN is licensed to practice "professional nursing," and an LPN is licensed to practice
"practical nursing."la Florida provides two paths to licensure - licensure by examination and licensure
by endorsement. There are currently 253,338 RNs and 73,942 LPNs actively licensed to practice in the
state.15

To be licensed by examination, an individual must:

. Submit an application with the appropriate fee;
o Satisfactorily complete a criminal background screening;. Demonstrate English competency;
. Successfully complete an approved nursing educational program; and. Pass a licensure exam.'6

Licensure by endorsement is the process by which a nurse validly licensed in another state may be
licensed in Florida without having to sit for an examination. To be licensed by endorsement, a nurse
must:

Submit an application with the appropriate application fee;
Hold a valid license in another state or territory of the U.S., provided that the licensure of such
state or territory has licensure requirements that are substantially equivalent to or more
stringent than those in Florida;
Meet the qualifications for licensure by examination;

il Presentation by Lori Scheidt, Vice-Chair, Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators, before the House of Representative Select
Committee on Affordable Healthcare Access in Tallahassee, Florida (Dec. 1 ,2015\, available at
!ttpj/ 4444ff.mvfloridahouse.oov/Sections/Documents/loaddoc.aspx?PublicationTvoe=Committees&Committeeld=2883&Session=2016&

)cumem |voe=Meet (last visited January 4,2016).
Telephone call with Dwight Cooper, Co-Founder and Chief Executive Officer of PPR Healthcare Staffing on Decembe r 21 ,2015. Mr.

Cooper indicated that in November 2015, his company received approximately 17OO reguests for immediale placement of temporary
nurses to work the winter months; however, during non-winter months, placement requests average between 300 and 400. Mr. Cooper
cautions that healthcare facilities generally requests temporary nurses once they have reached critical status and have redeployed local
Jtuping staff as efficienlly as possible, due to the expense associated with the use of temporary nurses.
" Section 464.004(1), F.S.
'" Section 464.003(20), F.S., defines the 'practice of professional nursing" as the performance of those acts requiring substantial
specialized knowledge, judgment, and nursing skill based upon applied principals of psychological, biological, physiial, and social
sciences' Section 464.003(19), F.S., defines the "practice of practical nursing" as the performince of selected acis, including the
administration of treatments and medications, under the direction of a registered nurse, licensed physician, or a licensed deitist, and is
responsible and accountable for making decision that are based upon the individual's educational pieparation and experience in
nursing.

I E-mail with staff of the DOH (on file with the Health Quality Subcommittee).
16 

Section 464.008, F.S. For its licensure examination, the DbH uses lhe National Council Licensure Examination (NCLEX), developed
by the National Council of State Boards of Nursing.
STORAGE NAtIE: h1061.SCAHA.DOCX pAGE:3
DATE:11412016

a

a



. Successfully pass a licensure exam that is substantially equivalent to or more stringent than the
exam required by Florida;

o Have practiced in another state or territory of the U.S., for two of the proceeding three years
without having any action taken against his or her license; and. Satisfactorily complete a criminal background screening.lT

Licenses are renewed biennially.ls Each renewal period, an RN or LPN must document completion of
one contact hour of continuing education for each calendar month of the licensure cycle.le As a part of
the total continuing education hours required, all licensees must complete a two-hour course on the
prevention of medical errors and a two-hour course in Florida laws and rules.2o Effective August 1,
2017 , all licensees must also complete a two-hour course in recognizing impairment in the workplace.2l

lnterstate Compacts

An interstate compact is an agreement between two or more states to address common problems or
issues, create an independent, multistate governmental authority, or establish uniform guidelines,
standards or procedures for the compact's member states.22 Article 1, Section 10, Clauie 3 (Compact
Clause) of the U.S. Constitution authorizes states to enter into agreements with each other, without the
consent of Congress. However, the case law has provided that not all interstate agreements are
subject to congressional approval, but only those that may encroach on the federal government's
power.23 Florida is a party to 25 interstate compacts, including the Driver's License dompact, Compact
on Adoption and l\4edical Assistance, and the lnterstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for
Military Children.2a

Nurse Licensure Compact

ln 2000, the National Council of State Boards of Nursing (NCSBN) established model legislation for the
Nurse Licensure Compact (NLC), which allows a nurse to have one license, issued by the primary state
of licensure, with the privilege to practice in other compact sta^t_es. The NLC applies to registered nurses
(RNs) and licensed practical or vocational nurses (LPNiLVN).2u ln 2015, the NCSBN reviied the model
legislation for the NLC to address concerns related to uniform licensure requirements, governance, and
rule-making.26

The NLC was modeled after the Driver's License Compact, which permits a person holding a license in
one state to drive in other states without applying a for a driver's license in each state through which he

17 Section 446.009, F.S. For spouses of active duty military personnel who relocate to Florida pursuant to official military orders, the
spouse is deemed to meet the requirements of licensure by endorsement if he or she is licensed by a state that is a member of the
Nurse Licensure Compact, and will be issued a license upon submission of an application for licensure with the appropriate fee and
satisfactory completion of the required criminal background screening.
'o Section 464.013. F.S.
'n Rule 6489-5.002, F.A.C. A course in HIV/AIDS is required in the first biennium only and a domestic violence course is required every
third biennium.
20 Rure 6489-s.011. F.A.c.
lt^ Supra note 18 and Rule 6489-5.014, F.A.C.
" Council of State Govemments, Capitol Research, Speciat Edition - lnterstate Compacts, available at

(last visited January 4,2016l.
;;F^o!:lyplrt g9g. Virginia v. Iennessee, 148 U.S. 503 (1893), New Hampshire v. Maine,426 U.S. 363 (1976)
- OPPAGA, 2015 Nurse Licensure Compact Revr'sions Address Some Barriers and Disadvantages in 2006 OPPAGA Report, available
a.f floridasn.qrsi-n-q-gov/forms/2015-oppaqa-research-memo.odf (last visited January 4,2016).
'" Another NCSBN licensure compact, the Advanced Practice Registered Nurse Compact, is a multi-state agreement that establishes a
mutual recognition system for the licensure of advanced practice registered nurses (APRNs). Florida is not etigible to enter the
Advanced Practice Nurse Compact because that compact requires APRNs to be abie to prwide patient care i-ndependent of a
supervisory or collaborative relationship with a physician and Florida law requires such nurses to be supervised under a physician
protocol. The APRN Compact is available at https:/iwww.ncsbn.orq/aprn-compact.htm (last visited January 4,2016), and' Florida,s
current supervision requirement for APRNs is in s. 464.012(3), F.S.

l"_l!e g]ised model legislation may be found at httos://www.ncsbn.oro/95.htm (last visited January 4,2016).
STORAGE NAME: h1061.SCAHA.DOCX 1AGE:4
DATE:11412016



or she may drive.2'The NLC uses the same system of mutual recognition, which allows a nurse holding
a multistate license to practice in any other party state.

Since its initial inception, the original NLC has been adopted by 25 states. According the NCSBN, an
additional five states has NLC legislation pending.2s States that adopted the prior NIC must adopt the
revised NLC to become members of the new compact. Those states that are members of the original
compact are indicated in the map below.2e

DE

MD

DC

#
1N

RI

Mi{RIANA
ISLAED$ iMI':

To join the NLC, a state must pass the NLC model legislation, the state board of nursing must
implement the compact, and the state licensing agency must pay an annual fee of $6,000.30

The model language of the NLC provides the framework under which party states must operate. The
T9q"] Flglage must be adopted in its entirety and any modifications must be approved by the
NCSBN."' The compact is arranged in 11 articles and addresses the following issues:

Findings and Purpose (Article l)

The primary purpose of the NLC is to facilitate the cross-state practice of nursing by promoting
compliance with the practice laws of each party state, facilitating the exchange of information between
party states, and ensuring and encouraging the cooperation of party states32 in the licensure and
regulation of nurses.

Definitions (Article I l)

The NLC provides definitions for terms used in the model legislation.

" NCSBN, Nurse Licens ure compact: what Policymakers Need to Know, available af https://www.ncsbn.oro/61g3.htm (last visited
January 4,2016).
'" NCSBN' Pending Legislation, available af https://www.ncsbn.orq/96.htm (last visited January 4,2O1Q.fhe states with pending NLC
!"egislation in 2015 included lllinois, Massachusetts, Minnesota, New York, and Oklahoma.
" NCSBN, NLC Member States (Downtoad Map), available at https://www.ncsbn.orq/nurse-licensure-compact.htm (last visited January
4,2016\.
to NCSBN, PeLdi.no- lgqislation, available af https://www.ncsbn.orq/96.htm (last visited January 4,20i6)."' See generaly NCSBN, Charter Documents, available at https://www.ncsbn.orq/95.htm (last visited January 4,2016)."'A party state is a state that has adopted the NLC.
STORAGE NAM E: h1 061.SCAHA.DOCX
DATE:11412016

VIRGIN
ISLANDS

f ttic States

GiJAil

AMEFIf AI.i
5A[1OA iASr

PAGE:5



General Provisions and Jurisdiction (Articte ill)

Under the NLC, an applicant for a liqense to practice as an RN or LPN/LVN has to apply in his or her
home state for a multistate license.33 The home state is the applicant's primary state'of iesidence.3a

The NLC's uniform licensing standards require an applicant for a multistate license to:

o Undergo a criminal history records investigation which includes the submission of fingerprints or
other biometric-based information for the purpose of obtaining criminal history recordi from the
Federal Bureau of lnvestigations and the state agency responsible for retaining criminal
records;

I Graduate or be eligible to graduate from a board approved RN or LPN/LVN educational
program or an educational program approved by an authorized accrediting body in the
applicable country and verified by a board approved independent credentials review agency as
a comparable educational program;

. For a graduate of a foreign educational program, successfully pass an English proficiency
examination that includes reading, speaking, listening, and writing;

' Successfully complete the NCLEX-RN@ or NCLEX-PN@ Exam or recognized predecessor;. Possess or be eligible for an active, unencumbered license;o Not have been convicted or found guilty, or entered into an agreed disposition of a felony
offense;

o Not have been convicted or found guilty, or entered into an agreed disposition, of a
misdemeanor offense related to the practice of nursing as determined on a case-by-case basis;o Not be currently enrolled in an alternative program or nondisciplinary monitoring program
approved by the state board of nursing;

. Be subject to self-disclosure requirements regarding the current participation in an alternative
program; and

o Have a valid social security number.

A nurse practicing in a party state under the multistate licensure privilege subjects himself or herself to
the practice laws of that state, as well as the jurisdiction of that state's ticensing board, courts, and
other laws. The NLC vests with each party state the authority to take adverse iction3s against a
multistate licensure privilegero in accordance with the state's due process laws. Adverse actions may
include cease and desist orders or any other action that affects the nurse's ability to practice under a
multistate licensure privilege. Upon taking adverse action against a multistate licensure privilege, the
party state taking the adverse action must promptly notify the administrator of the coordinatedlicensure
information system.37 Thg administrator of ine system wiil notify the home state of any adverse actions
taken by a remote state.38

33 A multistate license is a license to practice as an RN or LPN/LVN issued by a home state licensing board that authorizes the license
holder to practice in all party states under a multistate licensure privilege.
"- Pursuant to the model rules developed under the prior NLC, a nursets home state may be evidenced by a drivers, license with a
home address, voter registration card with a home address, federal income tax return, military documentation of state of legal
residence, or aW2 from the U'S' government or any bureau, division, or agency thereof. See Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators,
Nurse Licensure Compact Molel Rups and Regulations, (Rev. Nov. 13, ZOIZ, Aug.4,2OOA, Sept. 16, 2004), availaibte at
[r*ttpq://www. ncsbn.oro/NLC Model Rules. pdf ( last visited January 4, 20 1 6).
"" Adverse action means any administrative, civil, equitable, or criminal action permitted by a state's laws which is imposed by a
licensing board or other authority against a nurse.
"" Multistate licensing privilege refers to the legal authorization associated with a multistate license permitting the practice of nursing as
either an RN or LPN/LVN in a remote state or pa(y state other than the nurse's home state.37 The coordinated licensure information system is an integrated process for collecting, storing, and sharing information on nurse
licensure and enforcement activities related to nurse licensure laws that are administered by i nonprofit orlanization composed of and
controlled by licensing boards. Currently, the NCSBN operates the Nursys@ system, which ls a national daiabase for verification of
nurse licensure, discipline and practice privileges for RNs and LPN/LVNs licensed in participating boards of nursing, including all thestatesintheNLC'See@(lastvisitedJanuary4,2o16).
38 A remote state is a pirty state, otner tnan tf,e home state.
STORAGE NAM E: h 1 061.SCAHA.DOCX
oATE:'ll4t2o16 '"^r r^'uvva PAGE: 6



A party state may also issue single-state licenses for those individuals that meet the party state's
requirements for a single-state license. The NLC does not govern the requirements for a single-state
license issued by a party state or a single-state license issued by a nonparty state. A single-itate
license does not authorize the holder to practice nursing in any other state but the state of issuance.

The revised NLC grandfathers those licenses issued under the prior NLC. However, if a nurse changes
home states after the effective date of the revised NLC, the nurse must meet all the uniform licensure
requirements of the revised NLC. lf a nurse fails to satisfy the uniform licensure requirements due to a
disqualifying event occurring after the effective date of the NLC, the nurse will be ineligible to retain or
renew his or her multistate license.

Applications for Licensure in a Party State (Article lV)

ln reviewing an application for licensure, the licensing board of each party state must:

o Determine if the applicant currently holds or has ever held a license issued by any other state;o Determine if there is any encumbrance on any single-state or multistate license;3eo Determine if any adverse action has been taken against any license;o Determine whether the applicant is currently participating in an alternative program;a0 and. Verify licensure information through the coordinated licensure information system.

A nurse may hold only one multistate license, which is issued by his or her home state. lf a nurse
changes his or her primary state of residence, the nurse must apply for licensure in the new home state
and meet that state's licensure requirements.al Prior to issuing a multistate license under the NLC, the
applicant must submit a Declaration of Primary State of Residence Form and any other documentation
required by the licensing board to satisfactorily establish the change in the primary state of residence.a2
The multistate license issued by the prior home state must be deactivated in accordance with
applicable rules adopted by the lnterstate Commission of Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators. lf a
nurse moves his or her primary state of residence from a party state to a non-party state, the multistate
license issued in the previous home state will convert to a single-state license, valid only in that state.

Additional Authority of the Party state Licensing Boards (Article v)

A state licensing board or state agency has the authority to:

. Take adverse action against a nurse's multistate licensure privilege to practice within that party
state, but only a nurse's h.9me state has the power to take action against the nurse's license
issued in the home state.a3

. lssue cease and desist orders or impose an encumbrance to practice within that party state.. Complete any pending investigation of a nurse who changes his or her primary state of
residence during the course of such investigation. The licensing board is authorized to taken
any appropriate action and must promptly report the findings of such investigations to the

3e An encumbrance is any revocation, suspension, or limitation on the full and unrestricted practice of nursing imposed by a licensing
board.
a0 An altemative program is a non-disciplinary monitoring program approved by a licensing board.'' The nurse may apply for licensure in advance of the change of his or her primary state of residence." See NCSBN, Nurse Licensure Compact Frequently Asked Questions, available af httos:i/www.ncsbn.orq/94.htm (last visited January
4,2016). Currently, each party state has its own Declaration of Primary State of nesidence Formfor exarnptes, see Texas, form,
available af https://www.bon.texas.qov/forms primary state of residence sworn declaration.asp; New Mexico's form, available at
http://nmbon.sks.com/primarv-state-of-residence-declaration.asox; Maryland's form, avarlable at http://mbon.
tsdq.aspl; et al. (last visited each website on January 4,2016).
"o The home state must give the same priority and effect to conduct reported from a remote state as it would to conduct that occurred
within the home state. The home state applies its own state laws to determine appropriate conduct. For example, if the nurse committed
an offense in a remote state that would result in an emergency suspension of his or her license had it been committed in the home
state, the home state should treat the offense as if it occurred in its state and suspend the license.
STORAGE NAME: h 1 061.SCAHA.DOCX
DATE:11412016

PAGE:7



administrator of the coordinated licensure information system. The administrator will prompfly
report such actions to the new home state.

o lssue subpoenas for hearings and investigations that require the attendance and testimony of
witnesses and the production of evidence. Party states will enforce, by a court of competent
jurisdiction, such subpoenas issued by other party states. The party siate issuing the subpoena
must pay any fees or costs required by the service statutes of the state in whichlhe witness or
evidence is located.

o Obtain and submit fingerprints or other biometric information for federal and state criminal
background checks and use the results to make licensure decisions.

' lf permitted by state law, the licensing board may recover the costs of investigations and
disposition of cases resulting from any adverse action taken against a license.o Take adverse action based on the factual findings of a remote state.

lf adverse action is taken by a home state against a nurse's multistate license, the nurse's multistate
licensure privilege to practice is deactivated until all encumbrances of his or her multistate license has
been removed. ln any disciplinary order issued by a home state that imposes adverse actions, a
statement that the nurse's multistate licensure privilege has been deactivated must be included. lf, in
lieu of adverse action, a home state allows the nurse to participate in an alternative program, the
multistate licensure privilege must be deactivated for the duration of such program.

Coordinated Licensure lnformation Sysfem and Exchange lnformation (Articte Vq

All party states must participate in the coordinated licensure information system, which includes
information on the licensure and disciplinary history of each nurse. Any adverse action, current
significant investigative information, licensure denials and reason for d'enial, and nurse participation in
alternative programs known to the licensure board, whether such participation is deemed nonpublic or
confidential under state law, must be reported to the coordinated licensure information system.
Although nonparty states may have access to licensure and disciplinary information in the coordinated
licensure information system, information regarding current significant investigations and participation
in nonpublic or confidential alternative programs is only available to the licensure boards of party
states.

A party state may indicate that information it has submitted may not be shared with non-party states or
other entities without express permission of that state. A party itate may not share information obtained
from the system that includes personally identifiable information exceptio the extent allowed by the
laws of the party state contributing the information. lnformation on the system must be erprnged in
accordance with the laws of the contributing state.

The compact administrator of each state must submit a uniform data set to each party state, which
includes:

. ldentifyinginformation;

. Licensure data;
r lnformation related to alternative program participation; and

' Other information that may facilitate the administration of the Compact, as determined by
commission rules.

Upon request from another party state, a party state must provide all investigative documents and
information.

lnterstate Commission of Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators (Article Vll)

The NLC creates the lnterstate Commission of Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators (commission).
The NLC contains a choice of forum provision that requires legal action to be brought solely and

STORAGE NAME: h1 061.SCAHA.DOCX
DATE:11412016

PAGE:8



exclusively in a court of competent jurisdiction where the principal office of the commission is located,
unless waived by the commission.aa

The head of the licensing board or his or her designee is designated as the compact administrator for
each party state and is required to be a member of the commission. lf a state removes or suspends a
compact administrator from his or her office, such administrator's vacancy on the commission will be
filled in accordance with the laws of the party state.

Each compact administrator is entitled to an equal vote on the promulgation of rules and the creation of
bylaws, and is afforded the opportunity to participate in the business and affairs of the commission.

The commission is required to meet once a year; however, it may have additional meetings in
accordance with the commission bylaws. All meetings are open to the public and publicly noticed. The
notice must be posted on the commission's website and include the time, date, and locaiion of the
meeting and each party state must provide notice of the meeting on the licensing board's website or in
accordance with its respective public notice requirements.

The NLC allows the commission to participate in closed, nonpublic meetings to discuss certain topics.
Prior to a meeting being closed, legal counsel for the commission has to certify that the meeting may
be closed for discussion involving the following topics:

. A party state's noncompliance with its obligations under the compact;
o The employment, compensation, discipline, or other personnel matters, practices, or procedures

related to specific employees or other matters related to the Commission's internal personnel
practices and procedure;

o Current, threatened, or reasonably anticipated litigation;
. Contract negotiations for the purchase or sale of goods, services, or real estate;o Accusing a person of a crime or formally censuring a person;
o Disclosure of trade secrets or commercial or financial information that is privileged or

confidential;
o Disclosure of information of a personal nature where disclosure would constitute a clearly

unwarranted invasion of personal privacy;
o Disclosure of investigatory records compiled for law enforcement purposes;
o Disclosure of information related to any reports prepared by or on behalf of the commission for

the purpose of investigation of compliance with the NLC; or
o Matters specifically exempted from disclosure by federal or state law.

The commission must keep comprehensive minutes of matters discussed in its meetings and provide a
full and accurate summary of actions taken, and the reasons therefor. Minutes of a cloJed meeting wilt
be sealed; however, such minutes may be released pursuant to a majority vote of the commission or an
order of a court of competent jurisdiction.

The NLC directs the commission to adopt and publish bylaws or rules to govern its conduct in carrying
out the purposes and the exercise of its power under the compact, including bylaws or rules related to
standards and procedures for recordkeeping, holding meetings, selecting officers, establishing
personnel policies, and winding up the commission's operations.

The NLC vests the commission with the powers to:

o Promulgate rules to facilitate and coordinate implementation and administration of the compact;. Bring and prosecute legal proceedings or actions in the name of the commission; as long as a
party state's standing to sue or be sued under applicable law is not affected;

aa The principal office of the commission is located in Chicago, lllinois.
STORAGE NAM E: h1 061.SCAHA.DOCX
DATE:11412016

PAGE:9



o Purchase and maintain insurance and bonds;
. Borrow, accept, or contract for services or personnel;
. Cooperate with other organizations that administer state compacts related to the regulation of

nursing;
o Hire employees, elect or appoint officers, fix compensation, define duties, and grant such

individuals appropriate authority to carry out the purposes of the compact;
o Establish personnel policies and programs relating to conflicts of interest, qualifications of

personnel, and other related personnel matters;
. Accept any and all appropriate donations, grants, and gifts of money, equipment, supplies,

materials, and services, and to receive, utilize, and dispose of the same, provided the
commission avoids any appearance of impropriety or conflict of interest;

o Lease, purchase, accept appropriate gifts or donations of, or othenrise to own, hold, improve or
use any real, personal, or mixed property;

. Sell, mortgage, pledge, lease, exchange, abandon, or othenvise dispose of any property, real,
personal, or mixed;

o Establish a budget and make expenditures;
. Pay its reasonable expenses;
. Levy, and collect an annual assessment from each state to cover the costs of operation,

activities, and staff;
. Borrow money;
. Appoint committees;
o Provide and receive information from, and to cooperate with, law enforcement agencies;. Adopt and use an official seal; and
o Perform any other lawful duties necessary or appropriate to achieve the purposes of the

compact.

Pursuant to the NLC, the commission may not incur any financial obligation until it has secured
adequate funds to meet such obligation. The commission may not pledge the credit of any party state,
without the party state's explicit authority. The NLC requires the commission to maintain iccurate fiscal
records, which must be audited annually by a certified public accountant. The results of the audit must
be included in the commission's annual report.

The NLC provides immunity to the administrators, executive director, employees, and representatives
from suit and liability, either personally or in their official capacity, for claims arising out of their official
duties and responsibilities, as long as the damage is not caused by intention, willful, or wanton
misconduct. The NLC also provides that it will provide defense and indemnification in any such actions.

Nothing in the compact is to be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity.

Rule-making (Article Vl tt)

The NLC provides rule-making authority to the commission. Rules and amendments to the rules
passed by the commission are binding on the party states as of the effective date specified in each rule
or amendment.

Prior to the promulgation and adoption of a rule, the commission must provide notice of the meeting at
which the rule is to be considered and voted upon, at least 60 days in advance. The notice must be
posted on the commission's website and the website of the licensing board of each member state and
include:

. The time, date, and location of the meeting;

. The text of the proposed rule or amendment,

. The reason for the proposed rule or amendment;

. A request for comment from interested persons; and
STORAGE NAME:h1061.SCAHA.DOCX pAGE: 10
DATE:11412016



o The manner in which interested persons may submit comments.

The commission must provide an opportunity for a public hearing before the adoption of a rule or an
amendment, and provide sufficient notice of the time, place, and date of the hearing. Final action on
proposed rules is taken by a majority vote of all administrators. The commission may make technical
revisions, such as typographical or grammatical errors, without engaging in the rule-making process, by
posting such revisions to the commission's website. Members of the public may challenge a revision on
grounds that the revision results in a material change to a rule. The challenge must be in writing and
delivered to the commission within 30 days of the notice of the technical revision being posted. lf the
revision is challenged, the revision may not take effect without approval of the commission.

The commission has the authority to consider and adopt emergency rules, without prior notice, if there
is an imminent threat to public health, safety, or welfare; to prevent a loss of funds of the commission or
a party state; or to meet a deadline for the promulgation of an administrative rule that is required by
federal law. The standard rule-making procedure is to be applied retroactively as soon as possible but
no later than 90 days after the effective date of the emergency rule.

Oversight, Dispute Resolution, and Enforcement (Article lX)

The commission is charged with enforcing the provisions and rules of the NLC. However, all party
states are obligated to enforce the NLC and to take any necessary action to effectuate its purpose and
intent. The commission is entitled to receive service of process relating to its powers, responsibilities, or
actions, and may intervene in any proceeding affecting such.

lf a party state defaults in the performance of its duties or responsibilities under the NLC, the
commission will notify the defaulting state, as well as other party states, in writing of the nature of the
default and proposed cure(s) of the default. The commission will also provide remedial training and
technical assistance related to the default. lf the defaulting state fails to cure the default, the
commission may terminate its membership in the NLC, upon majority affirmative vote of the majority of
the administrators. The commission must notify the governor and the head of the licensing board of the
defaulting state, as well as all party states, of its intent to suspend or terminate the state's membership
in the NLC. However, termination of membership is to only be imposed after all other means of
compliance have been exhausted.

A termination of membership in the NLC may be appealed by petitioning the U.S. District Court for the
District of Columbia or the federal district in which the commission's principal office is located. The
commission's principal office is located in Chicago, lllinois. The commission may also bring an action in
federal court against a defaulting state to enforce compliance with the provisions of the rutC. tfre
commission may seek injunctive relief, damages, or any other remedies available under state or federal
law. A prevailing party in either action is entitled to court costs and reasonable attorneys'fees.

ln the event that a dispute arises between party states, the commission will attempt to resolve such
disputes. The NLC directs the commission to promulgate a rule that provides for mediation and binding
dispute resolution. lf a dispute cannot be resolved by the commission, the NLC provides that the issue
may be submitted to an arbitration panel, whose decision is final and binding.

Effective Date, Withdrawal and Amendment (Article X)

The NLC becomes effective and binding on the earlier of the date of legislative enactment by at least
26 states or December 31, 2018. The NLC provides a procedure for adopting the revised compact for
states that were a party to the prior contract.

To withdraw from the NLC, a state must enact a statute repealing the NLC. Such withdrawal does not
take effect until six months after the enactment of the repealing legislation. Any adverse actions or

STORAGE NAM E: h1 061.SCAHA.DOCX
DATE:11412016

PAGE:11



significant investigations that occur prior to the effective date of a withdrawal or termination must be
reported as required under the NLC.

The NLC may be amended by the party states; however, an amendment will not be effective until it is
enacted into the laws of all the party states. The NLC authorizes non-party states to be invited to
participate in the activities of the commission, on a nonvoting basis.

Construction and Severability

The NLC is to be liberally construed to effectuate its purposes. The NLC contains a severability clause
that provides that any provision that is found to be unconstitutional pursuant to a state constitution or
the U.S. Constitution is severed and the other provisions of the compact remain valid. lf the entire
compact is found to be unconstitutional in a party state, the NLC remains in full force and effect for all
other party states.

OPPAGA Review of the NLC

2006 OPPAGA Report

ln 2006, the Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government Acco,untability (OPPAGA) released a
report evaluating the possibility of Florida adopting the original NLC.45 OPPAGA concluded that
adopting the NLC would allow the state to alleviate short-term nursing shortages but would not resolve
the state's long-term nursing shortage. The report identified several benefits that would be realized by
adopting the NLC. Those benefits included:

o Access to NURSYS@, the coordinated licensure information system, would provide improved
access to information regarding disciplinary action taken against a nurse's license and
notification of a nurse under investigation for patient safety issues, including information that is
only available to party states.

. As a party state, Florida would be able to influence interstate nursing policies as a member of
the Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators.

Conversely, the report also identified several disadvantages to joining the compact at that time:

o Potentially, there could be an increase in disciplinary cases, both domestic and multistate,
which could have a negative fiscal impact on the DOH.

o Florida's continuing education requirements would not apply to a nurse working in Florida but
whose home state is not Florida.

r A nurse whose home state was not Florida may not be subject to a criminal background
screening because some party states did not a require criminal background screening for
licensure.

r Public access to licensure and disciplinary action may be impaired.. The DOH and BON will incur some initial start-up costs in implementing the NLC.

Additionally, OPPAGA identified barriers to implementing the original NLC legislation:

. The provisions of the original NLC language may conflict with Florida's public records and open
meetings laws. The original NLC required states receiving information to honor the
confidentiality restrictions of the state providing the information, and did not address notice
requirements for open meetings.

os OPPAGR, Nurse Licens ure Compact Would Produce Some Benefits But Not Reso/ye the Nursing Shortage, Report No. 06-02 (Jan.
?996), auailable af http://r4y4ry,oppqqa.state.fl.us/Summarv.aspx?reoortNum=06-02 (last visited January +, i0rc1.
STORAGE NAME:h1061.SCAHA.DOCX pAGE: 12
DATE:11412016



o The original NLC provided general and broad authorization for the compact administrators to
develop rules that were required to be adopted by party states, which raised concern about an
unlawful delegation of legislative authority.

o The DOH and the BON would need to educate nurses and employers on the NLC and its
requirements for the NLC to operate as intended.

o A comPact nurse is not required to notify the BON when he or she enters the state to practice
nursing, making it difficult for the workforce data to be captured. Additionally, the BON would not
be on notice that a nurse under investigation in another state has entered Florida to work.

The report made several recommendations, including seeking approvalto use alternative compact
language to address the barriers identified in the report. Other recommendations including authorizing
the BON to require employers to report employment data, providing a later effective date to allow for
education of the public regarding the NLC, and requiring the BON to report information to the
legislature on the effect of the NLC two years after its implementation.

2015 OPPAGA Memorandum

ln 2015, the revised NLC was reviewed by OPPAGA to determine if it adequately addresses concerns
identified in the 2006 report.6 OPPAGA found that the revised NLC resolved some of the barriers and
disadvantages listed above, and specifically it found:

. The revised NLC partially addresses the concerns regarding constitutional issues related to
public meetings but did not address public records concerns.

o Under the revised NLC, there are provisions requiring the commission to publicly notice
meetings on its website, as well as the websites of party states. However, the
commission is allowed to have closed door meetings to address certain issues. Such
meetings may be deemed inconsistent with Florida's open meetings law.

o A party state may still designate information it provides as confidential and restrict the
sharing of such information. However, once the information is in the possession of the
BON, it may be considered a public record under Florida law, available through the
BON.

o The revised NLC addresses the issue of delegation of legislative authority, by limiting the scope
of the rules the commission may adopt to only those rules that would facilitate and coordinate
the implementation and administration of the NLC. OPPAGA suggests that the legislature
include an expiration date, an automatic repeal provision, or a required review of the NLC to
provide the legislature with an opportunity to review the rules adopted by the commission.. The revised NLC does not become effective until it has been enacted by 26 states or December
31,2018, whichever is earlier. This provides the state with the time needed to educate nurses
and employers about the NLC.

. The revised NLC does not require employers of compact nurses who are practicing in a state
under a multistate licensure privilege to report such employment to the state's board of nursing.o Public access to nurse disciplinary information has improved due to the increased state
participation in NURSYS@, the coordinated licensure information system.. The revised NLC requires a criminal background screening for licensees. However, this
requirement only applies to new multistate licensure applicants, and a nurse who currently holds
a multistate license will not have to undergo a criminal background screening unless required by
his or her home state.

. The NLC does not address continuing education requirements. Although most states require
some continuing education, not all states do. Florida authorities would be unable to enforce
continuing education requirements for those practicing in the state under the multistate licensing
privilege.

o6 Supra fn.24. See a/so OPPAGA, Presentation to the House Select Committee on Affordable Healthcare Access (December 1 , 201S),
guailable at http://www.oppaoa.state.fl.us/Presentations.aspx (last visited January 4,2O16).
STORAGE NAME:h1061.SCAHA.DOCX PAGE: 13
DATE.1t4t2016



OPPAGA advises that the revised NLC does not affect the benefits it identified in its 2006 report. ln
addition to those benefits, it noted that as a member of the NLC, the processing time and resources
required to process a licensure by endorsement would be reduced or eliminated. Florida would also be
able to access investigative information earlier and would be able to open its own investigation if the
nurse is practicing in this state.

Effect of Proposed Changes

Nurse Licensure Compact

The bill enacts the Nurse Licensure Compact in full (see description of compact provisions in the
Current Situation section) and authorizes Florida to enter into the NLC with all other jurisdictions that
have legally joined the NLC. The bill makes minor changes to the language of the NLC, including
stylistic and grammatical changes and adding definitions for "commissioil and "compact." SomJof the
primary purposes of the NLC include addressing the expanded mobility of nurses and use of advanced
communication technologies, such as telehealth. Furthermore, in Florida, the billwould expedite or
eliminate the time it requires a military spouse who is a nurse to be able to practice here and address
the demand for temporary nurses during seasonal increases in population caused by tourism.

The bill amends current law to allow NLC implementation. lt authorizes the DOH to charge a fee to
convert a single-state license to a multistate license. The bill exempts an individual who holds a
multistate license from having to comply with the licensure by examination or licensure by endorsement
requirements. The DOH must designate each nurse license it issues as either a single-st,ate or
multistate license.

The bill makes conforming changes to statute to reference the multistate license and the requirements
under the NLC. The bill does not require changes to Florida's licensure and license renewal
requirements. However, an applicant that wishes to apply for a multistate license must meet the
requirements of the NLC, in addition to the Florida licensure requirements.

Srng/e-Sfate Licenses

A party state may also issue single-state licenses for those individuals that meet the party state's
requirements for a single-state license. The NLC does not govern the requirements for a single-state
license. A single-state-license does not authorize the holder to practice nursing in any otheritate but
the state of issuance. Nonparty states will continue to issue single-state licenses.

Florida may issue a single-state license upon the request of an applicant or for individuals who do not
qualify for a multistate license but othenarise qualify to be licensed in Florida. For example, the NLC
does not allow an individual who has been convicted of a felony to be issued a multistate license.
However, under Florida law, the Board will review the application of individuals with felony convictions
on a case-by-case basis to determine eligibility for licensure. lf the board deems that the applicant does
not pose a threat to public safety, the board may issue only a single-state license.

The bill requires that all licenses must be conspicuously designated as either a single-state license or a
multistate license.

The Florida Center for Nursinq

The Florida Center for Nursing was established by the Legislature in 2001, to address the issues of
supply and.demand for nursing, including the recruitment, retention, and utilization of nurse workforce
resources.'7 The bill requires the Florida Center for Nursing to include the impact of the state's
participation in the NLC in its supply and demand calculations and projections for the need for nurse

a7 Chapter 2OO1-277, L.O.F. and s. 464.019b, F.S.
STORAGE NAM E: h "l 061.SCAHA.DOCX
DAfE:11412016

PAGE:14



workforce resources. The Florida Center for Nursing is authorized to request any information held by
the board regarding nurses licensed in this state, holding a multistate license, or any information
reported by employers of such nurses, other than personally identifiable information.

Enactment Date

The bill provides an effective date of December 31,2018, or upon enactment of the Nurse Licensure
Compact into law by twenty-six other states, whichever date occurs first in time.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Amends s. 456.073, F.S., relating to disciplinary proceedings.
Section 2. Amends s. 456.076, F.S., relating to treatment programs for impaired practitioners.
Section 3. Amends s. 464.003, F.S., relating to definitions.
Section 4. Amends s. 464.004, F.S., relating to the Board of Nursing.
Section 5. Amends s. 464.008, F.S., relating to licensure by examination.
Section 6. Amends s. 464.009, F.S., relating to licensure by endorsement.
Section 7. Creates s. 464.0095, F.S., relating to the Nurse Licensure Compact.
Section 8. Amends s. 464.012, F.S., relating to certification of advanced registered nurse practitioners.
Section 9. Amends s. 464.019, F.S., relating to titles and abbreviations.
Section 10. Amends s. 464.018, F.S., relating to disciplinary actions.
Section 11. Amends s. 464.0195, F.S., relating to the Florida Center for Nursing.
Section 12. Provides an effective date of December 31, 2018, or upon enactment of the Nurse

Licensure Compact into law by twenty-six other states, whichever date occurs first in time.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

Due to the authorized fee for conversion of a single-state license to a multistate license, the DOH
may realize an indeterminate, positive fiscal impact. The DOH has not yet determined the fee it will
charge for conversion. The fee for initial licensure will not change.

The DOH may incur an indeterminate, negative fiscal impact due the loss of fees associated with
licensure by endorsement and licensure renewal fees for those who are licensed in Florida but
holds a multistate license from their home state. There are currently 16,351 nurses licensed in
Florida who are also licensed in compact states.as However, this loss will likely be off-set by a
reduction in expenditures related to the processing of licensure by endorsement applications, as
nurses from member states will no longer need to obtain a Florida license to practice.

2. Expenditures:

The DOH will incur an indeterminate, negative fiscal impact associated with implementation of the
NLC, including a one-time modification of computer software and education of the public.

The DOH may incur an indeterminate, negative fiscal impact due to an increase in complaints filed
against nurses practicing in the state under the NLC.

The DOH may incur indeterminate, insignificant costs associated with the activities of the
commission, such as travel for the compact administrator.

The DOH will incur a negative fiscal impact of $6,000 annually to pay the compact membership fee.

a8 E-mail from the staff of the DOH (December 10, 2015), on file with the Health Quality Subcommittee.
STORAGE NAME: h1061.SCAHA.DOCX pAGE: 15
DATE:11412016



The bill requires the DOH to comply with the rules adopted by the commission. Until the content of
the rules is known, the fiscal impact for compliance is indeterminate.

FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

A nurse currently licensed in Florida would be subject to a fee for the conversion of his or her single-
state license to a multistate license.

Fees associated with applying for a license in a party state would be eliminated for a nurse whose
home state is Florida and wants to practice in a party state, as well as a nurse whose home state is in a
party state and wishes to practice in Florida. ln addition, employers of nurses will likely experience
improved ease of recruitment, as nurses can more easily move between states, both permanenfly and
temporarily.

FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

!II. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

Not applicable. The bill does not appear to affect county or municipal governments.

2. Other:

As discussed below in the section entitled, 'RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY," the bill delegates
authority to the commission to adopt rules that facilitate and coordinate the implementation and
administration of the Nurse Licensure Compact.

If enacted into law, the state will effectively bind itself to rules not yet adopted by the commission.
The Florida Supreme Court has held that while it is within the province of the Legislature to adopt
federal statutes enacted by Congress and rules promulgated by federal administrative bodies that
are in existence at the time the Legislature acts, it is an unconstitutional delegation of legislative
power to prospectively adopt federal statutes !91yet enacted by Congress and rules not yet
promulgated by federal administrative bodies.o"' Under this holding, the constitutionality of the bill's
adoption of prospective rules might be questioned, and there does not appear to be binding Florida
case law that squarely address this issue in the context of interstate compacts.

ae Freimuth v. Sfafe,2725o.2d473,476(Fla.1972)(quoting Fta.tnd.Comm'n v. Stafe exrel.OrangeSfate OitCo.,15SFla.772
( 1945).
5o ttii prohibition is based on the separation of powers doctrine, set forth in Article ll, Section 3 of the Florida Constitution, which has
been construed in Florida to require the Legislature, when delegating the administration of legislative programs, to establish the
minimum standards and guidelines ascertainable by reference to the enactment creating the program. See Avatar Development Corp.
v. Sfafe, 723 So.2d 199 (Fla. 1998).
STORAGE NAME: h1061.SCAHA.DOCX pAGE: 16
DATE:11412016

B.

C.

D.



The most recent opportunity Florida courts have had to address this issue appears to be in
Department of Children and Fqmily Servlces v. L.G., involving the lnterstate Compact for the
Placement of Children (ICPC).51 The First District Court of Ap-peal considered an argument that the
regulations adopted by the Association of Administrators of the lnterstate Compact were binding and
that the lower court's order permitting a mother and child to relocate to another state was in violation
of the ICPC. The court denied the appeal and held that the Association's regulations did not apply as
they conflicted with the ICPC and the regulations did not apply to the facts of the case.

The court also references language in the ICPC that confers to its compact administrators the "power
to promulgate rules and regulations to carry out more effectively the terms and provisions of this
compact."52 The court states that "the precise legal effect of the ICPC compact administrators'
regulations in Florida is unclear," but noted that it did not need to address the question to decide the
case.ut However, in a footnote, the court provided:

Any regulations promulgated before Florida adopted the ICPC did not, of course, reflect
the vote of a Florida compact administrator, and no such regulations were ever
themselves enacted into law in Florida. When the Legislature did adopt the ICPC, it did
not (and could not) enact as the law of Florida or adopt prospectively regulations then
yet to be promulgated by an entity not even covered by the Florida Administrative
Procedure Act. See Freimuth v. Sfafe, 272 So.2d 473, 476 (F|a.1972); Fla. lndus.
Comm'n v. Sfafe ex rel. Orange State Oil Co., 155 Fla. 772,21So.2d 599, 603 (1945)
("[]t is within the province of the legislature to approve and adopt the provisions of
federal statutes, and all of the administrative rules made by a federal administrative
body, that are in existence and in effect at the time the legislature acts, but it would be
an unconstitutional delegation of legislative power for the legislature to adopt in advance
any federal act or the ruling of any federal administrative body that Congress or such
administrative body might see fit to adopt in the future."); Brazilv. Div. of Admin.,347
So.2d 755,757-58 (Fla. 1st DCA 1977), disapproved on other grounds by LaPointe
outdoorAdver.v.Fla.Dep'tof rransp.,398So.2d 1370,1370(F|a.1981).Thelcpc
compact administrators stand on the same footing as federal government administrators
in this regard.5a

ln accordance with the discussion provided by the court in this above-cited footnote, it may be
argued that the bill's delegation of rule-making authority to the commission is similar to the
delegation to the ICPC compact administrators, and thus, could constitute an unlawful delegation of
legislative authority. This ca_s_e, however, does not appear to be binding as precedent as the court's
footnote discussion is dicta.55

The bill requires the Florida Center for Nursing to assess the impact on the state's participation in the
Nurse Licensure Agreement, and include such impact in its strategy for meeting the state's needs for
nursing resources. Based on the assessment provided by the Florida Center for Nursing, the
Legislature may make decisions on Florida's continued participation in the NLC. The Legislature may
also review and reenact the NLC post-adoption of the commission's rules, which may counter a
claim that the authority given to the NLC commission to adopt rules is an unlaMul delegation.56

']aot so.zo 1047 (Fta. r't ocA zoor;.
" ld ar 10s2.
- td.
54 ld.tt Dicta are statements of a court that are not essential to the determination of the case before it and are not a part of the law of the
case. Dicta has no biding legal effect and is without force as judicial precedent. 1ZAFta Jun. 2o Courfs and Judges s. 191 (2015).
s6 Supra fn.24.
STORAGE NAM E: h1 06l.SCAHA.DOCX
DATE:11412016

PAGE: 17



B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

The bill authorizes the lnterstate Commission of Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators to adopt
rules to facilitate and coordinate the implementation and administration of the compact. The NLC
specifies that the rules have the force and effect of law and are binding in all party states. lf a party
state fails to meet its obligations under the NLC or the promulgated rules, the state may be subleit to
remedial training, alternative dispute resolution, suspension, termination, or legal action.

The compact details the rule-making process that must be followed including, notice, an opportunity for
public participation, and hearings. The compact also provides a procedure for emergency rule-maklng
in cases of imminent danger to public health, safety, or welfare, to prevent financial loss io the state'J
or commission, or to comply with federal laws or regulations. All rules and amendments are binding on
party state as of the effective date specified.

DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

C.

STORAGE NA[tlE: h1 061.SCAHA.DOCX
DATE:11412016

PAGE: 18



LORID A HOUSE OF REPR

HB 1061

Page 1 of46

CODING: Words stfr€kee are deletions; words underlined are additions.

E NTAT V

201 6

E

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

B

9

10

11

L2

13

L4

15

76

L1

1B

19

20

2t
aaZZ

23

24

25

ZO

A bill to be entitl-ed
An act relating to the Nurse Licensure Compact;

amending s. 456.013, F.S.; requiring the Department of
Heal-th to report certain investigatj-ve information to
the coordinated licensure information system; amending

s . 456 .0'7 6, F. S . ; requirj-ng an impaired practitioner

consuftant to discl-ose certain information to the

department,' requiring a nurse holding a mul-tistate
l-icense to report participation in a treatment program

to the department; amending s. 464.003, E.S.; revising
definitions, to conform; amending s. 464.004, E.S.;
requiring the executive director of the Board of
Nursing or his or her designee to serve as state
administrator of the Nurse Licensure Compact; amending

s. 464.008, F.S.; provi-ding eligibility criteria for a

multistate license; requiring that multistate licenses
be distinguished from single-state ]icenses; exempting

certain persons from licensed practical nurse and

registered nurse l-icensure requirements; amending s.

464.009, F.S.; exempting certain persons from

requirements for l-icensure by endorsement; creating s.

464.0095, F.S.; creating the Nurse Licensure Compact;

providing findings and purpose; providing definitions;
providing for the recognition of nursing l-icenses j-n

party states; requj-ring party states to perform

criminal history checks of licensure applicant.s;

hb1 061 -00



ORID A P R SENTATIVE

providing requirements for obtaining and retaining a

multistate l-icense; authorizinq party states to take

adverse action against a nurse's multistate licensure
privilege; requiring notification to the home

licensing state of an adverse action against a

Iicensee; requiring nurses practicing in party states
to comply with state practice faws; providing
limitat.ions for l-icensees not residing in a party
state; providing the effect of the act on a current
licensee; providing application requirements for a

mult.istate li-cense; providing licensure requirements

when a licensee moves between party states or to a

nonparty state; providing certain authority to state
licensing boards of party states; requiring
deactivation of a nurse's multistate licensure
privilege under certain circumstances; authorizlnq
participation in an a.Iternative program in 1j-eu of
adverse action against a license; requiring al} party
states to participate in a coordinated l-icensure
information; providing for the development of the
system, reporting procedures, and the exchange of
certain information between party states; establishing
the Interstate Commj-ssion of Nurse Licensure Compact

Administrators; providing for the jurisdiction and

venue for court proceedings; providing membership and

duties; authorLZLrrrg the commissi-on to adopt rules;

Page 2 of 46

CODING: Words s$iokes are deletions; words underlined are additions.

RoSUoH

HB 1061 2016

21

2B

29

30

31

5Z

33

34

35

36

3t

3B

39

40

4I

42

43

44

45

46

41

4B

/aAJ

50

51

52

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

53

54

55

56

51

troJU

59

60

67

oz

6?

64

65

66

67

6B

69

10

1L

12

13

1A

1E

16

11

1B

providing rulemaking procedures; providing for state

enforcement of the compact; providing for the

termination of compact membership; providing
procedures for the resolution of certain disputes;
providing an effective date of the compact; providing

a procedure for membership termination; providing

compact amendment procedures,' authorrzing nonparty

states to parti-cipate in commission activities before

adoption of the compact; providing construction and

severability; amending s. 464.01,2, F.S., authoriz:-nq a

multistate ficensee under the compact to be certified
as an advanced registered nurse practitioner if
certain eligibility criteria are met; amending s.

464.075, E.S.; authoriz:-nq registered nurses and

lj-censed practical nurses holding a mul-tistate 1j-cense

under the compact to use certain titles and

abbreviations; amending s. 464.0L8, F.S.; revj-slng the
grounds for denial of a nursi-ng license or
disciplinary action agalnst a nursing Ij-censee;

authoriz:-nq certain disciplinary action under the

, compact for certain prohibited acts; amending s.

464.0795, F.S.; revising the information required to
be included 1n the database on nursing supply and

demand; requiring the Florida Center for Nursing to
analyze and make future projections of the supply and

demand for nurses; authorizinq the center to request,

Page 3 of 46

CODING: Words stri€ken are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

19

BO

B1

B2

B3

OAU=

B5

B6

B1

BB

B9

90

9L

92

93

94

95

96

91

9B

99

100

101

102

103

704

and requiring the Board of Nursing to provide, certain
information about l-icensed nurses; providing an

effective date.

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the Stat.e of Florida:

Section 1. Subsection (10) of section 456.0'73, Florida
Statutes, is amended to read:

456.013 Disciplinary proceedings.-Disciplinary proceedings

for each board shall be within the jurisdiction of the

department.
(10) The complaint and aII information obtained pursuant

to the investigation by the department are confidential- and

exempt from s. 119.07(1) until 10 days after probable cause has

been found to exist by the probable cause panel or by the

department, or until the regulated professionaf or subject of
the investigation waives his or her privilege of
confidentiality, whichever occurs first. The department shall
report any significant investigation information relatj-ng to a

nurse hol-ding a mul-tistate l-lcense to the coordj-nated licensure
informatj-on system pursuant to s. 464.0095. Upon completion of
the investigation and a recommendation by the department to find
probable cause, and pursuant to a written request by the subiect
or the subject's attorney, the department shall provide the

subject an opportunity to inspect the investigative file or, at
the subject's expense, forward to the subject a copy of the

Page 4 of 46

CODING: Words s*i€ken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

772

113

774

115

116

L71

118

119

L20

L27

t22

L23

L24

\25

126

L21

L2B

!29

130

investigative fi1e. Notwithstanding s. 456.051, the subiect may

inspect or receive a copy of any expert witness report or
patient record connected with the investigation if the subject
agrees in writing t.o maintain the confidentiality of any

information received under this subsection until- 10 days after
probable cause is found and to maintain the confidentiality of
patient records pursuant to s. 456.057. The subject may fil-e a

written response to the information contained in t.he

investigative file. Such response must be fil-ed within 20 days

of maillng by the department, unless an extension of time has

been granted by the department. This subsection does not
prohibit the department from providing such information to any

Iaw enforcement agency or to any other regulatory agency.

Section 2. Subsection (9) of section 456.016, Elorlda
Statutes, is amended t.o read:

456.0-16 Treatment programs for impaired practitioners.-
(9) An impaired practitioner consuftant is the official

custodian of records relating to the referral of an impaired

Iicensee or applicant to that consul-tant and any other
interaction between the l-lcensee or applicant and the

consultant. The consul-tant may discl-ose to the impaired licensee
or applicant or his or her designee any information that is
disclosed to or obtalned by the consultant or that is
confidential- under paragraph (6) (a), but only to the extent that
it is necessary to do so to carry out the consultant's dutles
under this section. The department, and any other entity that

Page 5 of 46

CODING: Words s*{eken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

2016HB 1061

131

L32

1- 33

L34

135

136

731

138

139

140

L4L

L42

L43

744

145

746

L41

L4B

L49

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

enters into a contracL with the consuftant to receive the

services of the consultant, has direct administrative control
over the consuftant to the extent necessary to receive
discfosures from the consul-tant as allowed by federal l-aw. The

consultant must discl-ose to the department, upon the

department's request, whether an applicant for a mul-tistate
license under s. 464.0095 is participating in a treatment

program and must report to the department when a nurse holding a

muftistate license under s. 454.0095 enters a treatment program.

A nurse holding a multistate license pursuant to s. 464.0095

must report to the department within 2 business days after
entering a treatment program pursuant to this section. If a

disciplinary proceeding is pending, dD impaired Iicensee may

obtain such information from the department under s. 456.013.

Sectlon 3. Subsectj-ons (16) and (22) of section 464.003,

Elorida Statutes, are amended to read:

464.003 Defi-nitions.-As used in this part, the term:

(16) "Licensed practical nurse" means any person licensed
in this state or holding an active mul-tistate l- j-cense under s.

464.0095 to practice practical nursing.
(22) "Registered nurse" means any person l-icensed in this

state or holding an active multistate l-icense under s. 464.0095

to practice professional nursing.
Sectlon 4. Subsection (5) is added to section 464.004,

Florida Statutes, to read:

464.004 Board of Nursing; membershlp; appointment; terms.-

Page 6 of 46

CODING: Words $t+iek€s are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

157

158

159

160

76L

L62

153

L64

165

L66

r61

168

169

710

LlL

112

7't 3

714

175

116

L]1

LlB

L79

180

181

182

HB 1061 2016

(5) The executive direct.or of the board appointed pursuant

to s. 456.004(2) or his or her designee shall serve as the state
administrator of the Nurse Licensure Compact as required under

s. 464.0095.

Section 5. Subsection (2) of section 464.008, Elorida

Statutes, is amended, and subsection (5) is added to that
section, to read:

4 64 .008 Licensure by examination.-
(2) (a) Each applicant who passes the examination and

provides proof of meeting the educatj-onal requi-rements specified
in subsection (1) shal-I, unless denied pursuant to s. 464.0I8,
be entitled to licensure as a registered professional nurse or a

Iicensed practical nurse, whichever is applicable.
(b) An applicant who resides in this state, meets the

licensure requirements of this section, and meets the criteria
for multj-state licensure under s. 454.0095 may request the

issuance of a multistate Ij-cense from the department.
(c) A nurse who hol-ds a single-state license in this state

and applies to the department for a multistate license must meet

the eligibility criteria for a multistate license under s.

464.0095 and must pay an appl-icati-on and li-censure fee to chanqe

the licensure status.
(d) The department shall- conspicuously distinguish a

multistate license from a single-state license.
(5) A person hol-ding an active multistate license in

another state pursuant to s. 454.0095 is exempt from the

Page 7 of 46

CODING: Words $*rieke* are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb106'1-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

2016HB 1061

183

184

185

186

187

1BB

189

190

797

L92

193

L94

19s

796

t91

198

L99

200

20L

202

203

204

205

206

201

208

licensure requirements of this section.
Sectlon 6. Subsection (7) is added to section 464.009,

Florida Statutes, to read:

464.009 Licensure by endorsement.-
(7) A person hol-ding an active mul-tistate l-icense in

another state pursuant to s. 464.0095 is exempt from the

requlrements for Iicensure by endorsement j-n this section.
Section 1. Section 464.0095, Elorida Statutes, is created

to read:

464.0095 Nurse Licensure Compact.-The Nurse Licensure

Compact is hereby enacted i-nto law and entered j-nto by this
state with a1l- other jurisdictions legally joining therein in
the f orm substantial-.1-y as follows:

ARTICLE ]
EINDINGS AND DECLARAT]ON OF PURPOSE

(1) The party states find that:
(a) The health and safety of the public are affected by

the degree of comp]iance with and the effectiveness of
enforcement activities related to state nurse l-icensure laws.

(b) Violatlons of nurse Iicensure and other l-aws

regulating the practi-ce of nursing may result in injury or harm

to t.he public.
(c) The expanded mobility of nurses and the use of

advanced communication technol-ogies as part of the nation's
health care defivery system require greater coordination and

cooperation among stat.es in the areas of nurse licensure and

Page 8 of 46

CODING: Words skekee are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

201 6

209

2!0

271

ZIZ

2L3

2L4

2]-5

276

2L1

2tB

219

220

227

222

223

224

225

226

221

228

229

230

23L

232

233

2?4

HB 1061

regulation.
(d) New practice modalj-ties and technol-ogy make compfiance

with individual state nurse licensure laws difficult and

compl-ex.

(e) The current system of duplicative licensure for nurses

practicing in multiple states is cumbersome and redundant for
both nurses and states.

(f) Uniformi-ty of nurse licensure requirements throughout

the states promotes publ1c safety and public health benefits.
(2) The general purposes of this compact are to:
(a) Facilitate the states' responsibil-ity to protect the

publ-ic's health and safety.
(b) Ensure and encourage the cooperation of party states

in the areas of nurse licensure and regul-ation.
(c) Facil-itate the exchange of information among party

states 1n the areas of nurse regul-ation, investigation, and

adverse actions.
(d) Promote compfiance with the laws governing the

practice of nursing in each jurisdictj-on.
(e) Invest all- partv states with the authority to hold a

nurse accountable for meeting all state practice l-aws 1n the

state in which the patient is l-ocated at the time care is
rendered through the mutual- recognition of party state licenses.

(f) Decrease redundancies in the consideration and

issuance of nurse licenses.
(q) Provide opportunities for interstate practice by

Page 9 of 46

CODING: Words strisken are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB'1061 2016

235

236

231

238

239

240

24r

242
a A'>
LAJ

244

245

246

241

248
)/o

250

25L

252

253

)\A

255

256

257

258

259

260

nurses who meet uniform ficensure requirements.
ART]CLE ]I
DEFINTTIONS

As used j-n this compact, the term:
(1) "Adverse action" means any administrative, civiI,

equitable, or criminal action permj-tted by a state's l-aws whlch

is imposed by a licensing board or other authority against a

nurse, incfuding actions against an individuaf's license or
mul-tistate ficensure privil-ege, such as revocation, suspension,

probation, monitoring of the licensee, limitation on the

licensee's practice, or any other encumbrance on lj-censure

affecting a nurse's authorization to practice, including
issuance of a cease and desi-st action.

(2) "Alternative program" means a nondisciplinary
monitoring program approved by a licensing board.

(3) "Commission" means the Interstate Commission of Nurse

Licensure Compact Administrators established by this compact.

(4) "Compact" means the Nurse Licensure Compact

recognized, established, and entered into by the state under

this compact.

(5) "Coordinated licensure information system" means an

inteqrated process for collecting, storing, and sharing
lnformation on nurse licensure and enforcement activities
re]ated to nurse licensure laws which is adminj-stered by a

nonprofit organization composed of and control-l-ed by licensing
boards.

Page 10 of46

CODING: Words s$kkes are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

26L

262

263

264

265

266

) A'1

268

269

210

217

212

273

214

215

216

211

218

219

280

2Bt

282

283

284

285

286

(6) "Current significant investigative information" means:

(a) Investigative informat.ion that a l-icensing board,

after a prel,imj-nary inquiry that incfudes notification and an

opportunity for the nurse to respond, if required by state law,

has reason to believe is not groundless and, if proved true,
would indicate more than a minor infraction; or

(b) Investigative information that indicates that the

nurse represents an immediate threat to public hea.l-th and safety
regardl-ess of whether the nurse has been notified and had an

opportunlty to respond.

(7) "Encumbrance" means a revocation or suspension of, or

any fimitation on, the full- and unrestricted practice of nursingt

imposed by a .Iicensing board.
(B) "Home state" means the party state that is the nurse's

primary state of residence.
(9) "Licensing board" means a party state's regulatory

body responsibl-e for issuing nurse licenses.
(10) "Mul-tistate l-i-cense" means a license to practice as a

registered nurse (RN) or a Iicensed practical/vocatlonaf nurse

(LPN/VN) issued by a home state l-icensing board which authorizes
the ficensed nurse to practice in aII party states under a

multlstate licensure privil-ege.
(11) "Multistate licensure privilege" means a l-egal

authorization associated wlth a multistate license permittinqt

the practice of nursing as either an RN or an LPN/VN in a remote

state.

Page 11 of46

CODING: Words striek€fl are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

281

28B

2Rq

290

29L

292

293

294

295

296

291

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

30s

306

307

308

309

310

3t_1

3L2

(12) "Nurse" means an RN or LPN/VN, as those terms are

defi-ned by each party state's practice laws.
(13) "Party state" means any state that has adopted this

compact.

(14) "Remote state" means a party state other than the
home state.

(15 ) "Single-state 1j-cense" means a nurse I.icense issued

by a party state which authorizes practice onl-y within the
issuing state and does not inc]ude a multistate licensure
privil-ege to practice in any other party state.

(16) "State" means a state, territory, or possession of
the United States, or the District of Col-umbia.

(17) "State practice laws" means a party state's laws,

rufes, and regulations that govern the practice of nursing,
define the scope of nursj-ng practice, and create the methods and

grounds for imposing discipline. The term "state practice l-aws"

does not include requirements necessary to obtain and retain a

l-icense, except for qualificatlons or requirements of the home

state.
ARTICLE I]]

GENERAL PROVIS]ONS AND JUR]SDICT]ON

(1) A mul-tistate license to practice reglstered or
l-icensed practical-/vocati-onal nursing issued by a home state to
a resident in that state shal-l be recognized by each party state
as authorizing a nurse to practice as an RN or as an LPN/VN

under a multj-state licensu

Page 12 of 46

CODING: Words s*rieke* are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 201 6

(2) Each party state must impl-ement procedures for

considering the criminal history records of applicants for

initiaf multistate licensure or l-icensure by endorsement. Such

procedures shaff include the submission of fingerprj-nts or other

biometric-based j-nformation by appl-icants for the purpose of

obtaining an appllcantrs criminal history record information
from the Eedera] Bureau of Investigation and the agency

responsibl-e f or retaj-ning that state's criminal- records .

(3) fn order for an applicant to obtain or retain a

multistate license in the home state, each party state shall
require that the applicant fulfill-s the following criteria:

(a) Meets the home state's qualifications for ficensure or

renewa]- of licensure, as wel-l- as all other applicable state
1^--^
lclW5.

(b) 1. Has graduated or is eligible to graduate from a

Iicensj-ng board-approved RN or LPN/VN prelicensure education

program; or
2. Has graduated from a foreign RN or LPN/VN preficensure

education program that has been approved by the authorized
accrediting body in the appficable country and has been verified
by a fi-censing board-approved independent credentials review

agency to be comparabl-e to a Iicenslng board-approved

prelicensure education program.

(c) If the applicant is a graduate of a foreign
prelicensure education program not taught in English, or if
English is not the applicant's native .l-anguaqe, has successfully

Page 13 of46

CODING: Words skr€kes are deletions; words underlined are additions.

313

314

315

316

371

318

319

320

327

JZZ

323

324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332

333

334

335

336

55 t

338

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 201 6

passed a Ij-censing board-approved English proficiency
examination that j-ncl-udes the components of reading, speaking,

writ j-ng, and listening.
(d) Has successfull-y passed an NCLEX-RN or NCLEX-PN

Examination or recognized predecessor, as applicable.
(e) Is eliglble for or hofds an active, unencumbered

Ii-cense.
(f) Has submitted, in connection with an application for

inlt.ial- l-icensure or licensure by endorsement, fingerprints or
other biometric data for the purpose of obtaining criminal-
history record information from the Eederal- Bureau of
lnvestigation and the agency responsibl-e for retaining that
staters criminal records.

(g) Has not been convicted or found guil-ty, or has entered

into an agreed disposition other than a disposition that resu.l-ts

in nol-l-e prosequi, of a felony offense under appl-icable state or
federal- criminal 1aw.

(h) Has not been convicted or found guil-ty, or has entered

into an agreed disposition other than a dispositi-on that results
j-n nol-fe prosequi, of a mi-sdemeanor offense rel-ated to the
practice of nursing as determined on a case-by-case basis.

(i) Is not currently enrolled 1n an a.l-ternatj-ve program.

(j) Is subject to self-disclosure requirements regarding
current parti-cipatj-on in an alternative program.

(k) Has a valid United States social security number.

(4) A.l-l- party states may, in accordance with existing

Page 14 of46

CODING: Words st{i€ke* are deletions; words underlined are additions.

339

340

347
)Aa
J1L

1A1

344

345

346

347

348

?1q

3s0

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

359

360

361

362

363

364

hb1 061 -00



HOUS o RE ES TAT

HB 1061 2016

state due process law, take adverse action against a nurse's
multistate l-icensure privilege, such as revocation, suspension,
probation, or any other action that affects the nurse's
authorization to practice under a multistate licensure
prlvilege, including cease and desj-st actions. If a party state
takes such action, it shall- promptly notify the administrator of
the coordinated l-icensure information system. The admini-strator
of the coordinated lj-censure information system shafl- promptly

notj-fy the home state of any such actions by remote states.
(5) A nurse practicing in a party state must comply with

the state practice laws of the state in which the patient is
Iocated at the time service is provided. The practj-ce of nursing
is not limited to patient care but shal-l include all nursing
practice as defined by the state practice laws of the party
state in which t.he patient is located. The practice of nursing
in a party state under a mul-tistate licensure privilege subjects
a nurse to the jurisdiction of the licensing board, the courts,
and the l-aws of the party state in which the patient is located
at the tlme service is provided.

(6) A person not residing in a party state shalf continue
to be able to app.l-y for a party state's single-state license as

provided under the laws of each party state. The singl-e-state
llcense granted to such a person does not grant the privilege to
practice nursing in any other party state. This compact does not
affect the requirements established by a party state for the
issuance of a slngle-state l-icense.

Page 15 of46

CODING: Words s{iek€'B are deletions; words underlined are additions.

o

365

365

361

368

369

370

31]-

312

313

314

375

316

311

378

319

380

381

382

383

384

385

386

387

3BB

389

390

hb1 061 -00

S



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

391

392

393

394

39s

395

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

401

408

409

410

4L7

4]-2

4]-3

4]-4

A1Elt-LJ

476

(7) A nurse holding a home state multistate license, on

t.he effective date of thi-s compact, may retain and renew the
multistate license issued by the nurse's then-current home

state, provided that:
(a) A nurse who changes his or her primary state of

residence after the effective date must meet af1 appl-icable

requirement.s under subsection (3) to obtain a mul-tistate Iicense
from a new home state.

(b) A nurse who fails to satisfy the multj-state licensure
requirements under subsection (3) due to a disqualifying event

occurring after the effective date is ineligib.l-e to retain or
renew a multlstate license, and the nurse's mul-tistate license
shall be revoked or deactivated in accordance with applicabl-e

rules adopted by the commission.

ART]CLE IV

APPLICATIONS FOR LICENSURE ]N A PARTY STATE

(1) Upon application for a multistate license, the

l-icensing board in the issuing party state shall ascertain,
t.hrough the coordj-nated licensure information system, whether

the applicant has ever held, or is the hol-der of, a license
issued by any other state, whether there are any encumbrances on

any Iicense or multistate lj-censure privllege hel-d by the
applicant, whether any adverse action has been taken against any

l-j-cense or multistate licensure privifege held by the appllcant,
and whether the applicant is currentl-y partlcipating in an

al-ternative program.

Page 16 of46

CODING: Words strickes are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 201 6

(2) A nurse may ho.l-d a multistate l-icense, issued by the

home state, in only one party state at a time.
(3) If a nurse changes his or her primary state of

residence by moving from one party state to another party state,
the nurse must appl-y for lj-censure in the new home state, and

the multistate l-icense issued by the prior home state shall be

deactivated in accordance with applicable rules adopted by the
commi-ssion.

471

418

479

420

427

A '>')

n a'>
ALJ

424

425

426
A a'1

428

A'O

430

437

432

433

434

435

436

431

438

439

440

447

442

(a) The nurse may appl-y for l-icensure in advance of a

change in hj-s or her primary state of residence.
(b) A mu.l-tistate ficense may not be issued by the new home

state until the nurse provides satisfactory evidence of a change

in hls or her primary state of residence to the new home state
and satisfies aIl- applicabl-e requirements to obtaln a mul-tj-state

license from the new home state.
(4) If a nurse changes his or her primary state of

residence by moving from a party state to a nonparty state, the

multistate Ij-cense i-ssued by the prior home state shal] convert
to a s j-ngle-state l-icense val j-d onl-y in the f ormer home state.

ARTTCLE V

ADDITIONAL AUTHORTTY VESTED IN PARTY STATE L]CENSING BOARDS

( 1 ) In additj-on to the other powers conferred by state
law, a licensing board or state agency may:

(a) Take adverse action against a nurse's muftistate
licensure privllege to practice within that party state.

1. Onl-y the home state has the power to take adverse

Page 17 of 46

CODING: Words s{+i€ke+ are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

action against a nurse's license issued by the home state.
2. For purposes of taking adverse action, the home state

licensing board or state agency shal-} give the same priority and

effect to conduct reported by a remote state as it would if such

conduct had occurred withj-n the home state. In so doing, the
home state shal-l- appl-y its own state laws to determine

appropriate action.
(b) Issue cease and desist orders or impose an encumbrance

on a nurse's authority to practice withj-n that party state.
(c) Complete any pending investigation of a nurse who

changes his or her primary state of residence durlng the course

of such j-nvestigation. The f icensi-ng board or state agency may

also take appropriate action and shall- promptl-y report the

conclusions of such investigation to the administrator of the

coordinated licensure information system. The administrator of
the coordinated licensure j-nformation system shal.l- promptly

notify the new home state of any such action.
(d) Issue subpoenas for both hearings and investigations

443

444

445

446

441

448

449

450

45r

452

453

454

455

456

451

458

459

460

467

462

463

464

465

466

461

468

that require the attendance and testimony of witnesses or the
production of evidence. Subpoenas issued by a l-icensing board or
state agency in a party state for the attendance and testimony
of witnesses or the production of evidence from another party
state shall be enforced in the latter state by any court of
competent jurisdiction according to the practice and procedure

of that court appl-icable to subpoenas issued in proceedings

pending before it. The issuing authority shall- pay any witness

Page 18 of46

CODING: Words striekes are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hbl 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

469

410

47L

412

413

4'7 4

415

416

411

418

419

480

481

482

483

484

485

486

481

4BB

489

490

49L

492

493

494

fees, travel expenses, and mi]eage and other fees required by

the service statutes of the state in which the witnesses or

evidence is located.
(e) Obtain and submit, for each nurse l-j-censure applicant,

fingerprint or other biometric-based information to the Federal

Bureau of Investigation for crj-minaf background checks, receive
the results of the Federal Bureau of Investigation record search

on crimina] background checks, and use the results in making

licensure decisions.
(f) ff otherwise permitted by state 1aw, recover from the

affected nurse the costs of investigations and disposition of
cases resul-ting from any adverse action taken against that
nurse.

(q) Take adverse action based on the factual findings of
the remote state, provided that the ficensing board or state
agency folfows its own procedures for taking such adverse

action.
(2) If adverse action is taken by the home state against a

nurse's multistate license, the nurse's muftistate licensure
privilege to practice in all- other party states shall- be

deactivated until- al-I encumbrances are removed from the
multistate license. Al-l- home state disciplinary orders that
i-mpose adverse action against a nurse's multistate ficense shall
lnclude a statement that the nurse's multistate licensure
privil-ege is deactivated in aIf party states during the pendency

of the order.

Page 19 of46

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

(3) This compact does not override a party state's
decision that participation in an al-ternative program may be

used in lieu of adverse action. The home state.l-icensing board

shafl- deactivate the multlstate licensure privil-ege under the

mul-tistate l-icense of any nurse f or the duration of the nurse's
participation in an alternatj-ve program.

ARTICLE V]

COORDINATED LICENSURE ]NFORMATION SYSTEM AND EXCHANGE

INFORMAT]ON

(1) Af1 partv states shall- participate in a coordinated

licensure information system re.l-ating to all- l-icensed RNs and

LPNs/VNs. This system shall include i-nformation on the l-j-censure

and disciplinary history of each nurse, as submitted by party
states, to assist in the coordination of nurse licensure and

enforcement efforts.
(2) The commission, in consultation with the administrator

of the coordinated l-icensure information system, shafl formufate

necessary and proper procedures for the identification,
collection, and exchange of information under this compact.

(3) A11 licensinq boards shal-l- promptly report to the
coordinated licensure information system any adverse action, any

current signiflcant investigative information, denials of
appl-ications, the reasons for application denials, and nurse

participation in al-ternative programs known to the licensj-ng
board regardless of whether such parti-cj-patlon is deemed

nonpublic or confidential under state 1aw.

Page 20 of 46

CODING: Words stri€ko* are deletions; words underlined are additions.

495

496

491

498

lqq

500

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

s08

509

s10

511

572

513

514

515

516

517

518

519

520

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

527

522

523

524

525

526

521

528

529

s30

531

532

s33

534

535

s36

537

538

s39

540

541

542

543

544

545

546

HB 1061 2016

(4) Current significant lnvestigative information and

participation in nonpubl-ic or confidential al-ternative programs

shafl- be transmitted through the coordinated licensure
information system onl-y to party state licensing boards.

(5) Notwithstandinq anv other provisj-on of Iaw, aIl partv

state licensing boards contributing information to the
coordinated licensure information system may deslgnate
information that may not be shared with nonparty states or
disclosed to other entities or individual-s without the express

permj-ssion of the contributing state.
(6) Any persona] identifying information obtained from the

coordinated licensure information system by a party state
l-icensing board may not be shared with nonparty states or
disclosed to other entitles or j-ndj-viduals except to the ext.ent

permitted by the laws of the party state contributing the
information.

(7) Any information contributed to the coordinated
licensure information system which j-s subsequentfy requlred to
be expunged by the l-aws of the party state contributing that
informatj-on shall also be expunged from the coordinated
licensure lnformation system.

(B) The compact administrator of each party state shall
furnish a uniform data set to the compact administrator of each

other party state, which shal-I include, at a minimum:

(a) Identifying information.
(b) Licensure data.

Page 21 of 46

CODING: Words s+i6kes are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

541

548

549

550

551

552

553

554

555

555

557

558

559

560

561

562

563

564

s65

566

561

568

569

570

571

3tz

(c) Information related to alternative program

participation.
(d) Other information that may facilitate the

adminj-stration of this compact, as determined by commission

rules.
(9) The compact administrator of a party state shall

provide al-1 investigative documents and information requested by

another party state.
ARTICLE VI]

ESTABLTSHMENT OE THE INTERSTATE COMMISSION OF NURSE LICENSURE

COMPACT ADMINI STRATORS

(1) The party states hereby create and establish a joint

public entity known as the Interstate Commission of Nurse

Licensure Compact Admj-nistrators.
(a) The commission is an instrumentality of the party

states.
(b) Venue is proper, and judicial- proceedings by or

agalnst the commission shall be brought soIeIy and excfusivefy,
in a court of competent jurisdiction where the commission's

principal office is located. The commission may waive venue and

jurisdictional- defenses to the extent it adopts or consents to
participate j-n af ternative dispute resol-ution proceedings.

(c) This compact does not waive sovereign immunity.
(2) (a) Each party state shall- have and be llmited to one

administrator. The executive director of the state llcensing
board or his or her designee shall be the administrator of this

Page22of 46

CODING: Words s+n€ke+ are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

573

514

575

516

578

519

580

581

582

583

584

585

586

587

5BB

589

590

591

592

s93

594

595

s96

591

598

compact for each party state. Any admi-nistrator may be removed

or suspended from office as provided by the l-aw of the state
from which the administrator is appointed. Any vacancy occurring

on the commission shall- be filled in accordance with the laws of

the party state in which the vacancy exists.
(b) Each administrator is entitled to one vote with regard

to the adoption of rules and the creation of bylaws and shalf

otherwise have an opport.unity to partj-cipate j-n the business and

affairs of the commission. An admi-nistrator shall vote .in person

or by such other means as provided in the bylaws. The bylaws may

provide for an administrator's participation in meetings by

telephone or other means of communication.

(c) The commission shaff meet at least once during each

cafendar year. Additional meetings shafl be hefd as set forth in

the commissj-on's bylaws or rules.
(d) A1l- meetings shall be open to the publ-ic, and public

notice of meetings shall be given in the same manner as required

under Articl-e VIII of this compact.

(e) The commission may convene 1n a cl-osed, nonpublic

meeting if the commission must discuss:
1. Eailure of a party state to compl-y with its obligations

under this compact;

2. The employment, compensation, discipline, or other
personnel matters, pract@res related to specific
employees or other matters related to the commission's internal
personnel practices and procedures;

Page 23 of 46

CODING: Words strickee are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

599

600

601

602

603

604

605

506

601

508

609

610

6tL

672

613

674

515

616

611

618

679

620

621

622

623

624

3. Current, threatened, or reasonably anticipated
litigation;

4. Negotiation of contracts for the purchase or sale of
goods, servi-ces, or real estate,'

5. Accusing any person of a crime or formally censuring

any person;

6. Disclosure of trade secrets or commercial or financia.l-

information that is privi.Ieged or confidential;
7. Disclosure of information of a personal- nature where

disclosure woul-d constitute a cl-earl-y unwarranted invasion of
personal- privacy;

B. Dj-scl-osure of investigatory records compi]ed for l-aw

enforcement purposes;

9. Disc.Iosure of information related to any reports
prepared by or on behal-f of the commlssion for the purpose of
investigatj-on of compliance with this compact; or

10. Matters specificall-y exempted from disclosure by

federal or state statute.
(f) If a meeting, or portion of a meeting, is closed

pursuant t.o this subsection, the commission's legal- counsef or
designee shall certify that the meeting, or portion of the

meeting, is closed and shal-l- reference each rel-evant exempting

provision. The commission shall keep minutes that fully and

clearly describe all- matters di-scussed in a meeting and shall
provide a ful-l- and accurate summary of actions taken, and the
reasons therefor, including a description of the views

Page24 of 46

CODING: Words striekes are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 201 6

525

626

621

628

629

630

631

632

633

634

635

636

631

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

641

648

649

650

expressed. AI1 documents consj-dered in connection with an action

shall- be identified in such minutes. AII- mlnutes and documents

of a cfosed meeting shal-I remain under seal, subject to refease

by a majority vote of the commission or order of a court of

competent jurisdiction.
(3) The commission shall, by a majority vote of t.he

administrators, prescribe byl-aws or rules to govern its conduct

as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the purposes and

exercise the powers of this compact, including, but not fimited

to:
(a) Establ-ishing the commj-ssion' s f iscal year.

(b) Providing reasonabl-e standards and procedures:

1. For the establ-ishment and meetings of other committees.

2. Governing any general or specif ic del-egatj-on of any

authority or function of the commission.

(c) Providing reasonable procedures for calling and

conducting meetings of the commission, ensurlng reasonable

advance notj-ce of all meetings, and providing an opportunity for

attendance of such meetings by interested parties, with

enumerated exceptions designed to protect the public's interest,
the privacy of individuals, and proprietary information,
includj-ng trade secrets. The commission may meet in closed

session only after a majority of the administrators vote to
cl-ose a meetlng in whole or in part. As soon as practicable, the

commissj-on must make public a copy of the vote to cl-ose the

meeting reveal-ing the vote of each adminj-strator, with no proxy

Page 25 of 46

CODING: Words st+ieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

201 6

651

652

6s3

654

655

656

651

658

6s9

660

661

662

663

664

665

666

661

668

669

610

61r

672

613

614

615

6'7 6

HB 1061

votes allowed.
(d) Establ-ishing the titles, duties and authority, and

reasonable procedures for the election of the commissj-on's

of f i-cers.
(e) Providing reasonable standards and procedures for the

establishment of the commission's personnel pol-j-cies and

programs. Notwithstanding any civil- service or other similar
faws of any party state, the byl-aws shall exclusively govern the

commission's personnel pol-icies and programs.

(f) Providing a mechanism for winding up the commission's

operations and the equitable disposition of any surplus funds

that may exj-st after the termination of this compact after the

payment or reserving of all of its debts and obligations.
(4) The commission shalI publish its bylaws and rules, and

any amendments thereto, in a convenient form on the commission's

website.
(5) The commissi-on shall maintain its financial records in

accordance wit.h the bylaws.
(6) The commisslon shal-l- meet and take such actions as are

consistent with this compact and the byl-aws.

(7) The commission has the power to:
(a) Adopt uniform rules to facilitate and coordinate

impl-ementation and administration of this compact. The rules
shall have the force and effect of law and are blnding in all
party states.

(b) Bring and prosecute l-egal proceedings or acti-ons in

Page 26 of 46

CODING: Words stri€kee are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb106'1-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

201 6HB 1061

61-l

6'7I

619

580

681

682

683

684

685

686

681

5BB

689

690

69t

692

693

694

59s

696

691

698

699

700

10L

IUZ

the name of the commission, provlded that the standing of any

licensing board t.o sue or be sued under applicable law are not

affected.
(c) Purchase and maintaln insurance and bonds.

(d) Borrow, accept, or contract for services of personnel,

incf udlng employees of a party stat.e or nonprof j-t organizations.
(e) Cooperate with other organizatj-ons that administer

state compacts rel-ated to the regulation of nursing, including
sharing administrative or staff expenses, offlce space, or other
resources.

(f) Hire employees, elect or appoint officers, fix
compensation, define duties, grant such indlviduafs appropriate
authority to carry out the purposes of this compact, and

establish the commission's personnel pol-icies and programs

relating to conflicts of interest, qual-ifications of personnef,

and other refated personnel matters.
(g) Accept any and afl- appropriate donations, grants, and

gifts of money, equipment, supp]ies, materials, and services and

receive, use, and dispose of the same, provj,ded that, at all-

times, the commission shal-1 avoid any appearance of j-mpropriety

or conf l-ict of interest.
(h) Lease, purchase, accept appropriate gifts or donations

of, or otherwise own, hold, improve, or use any property,
whether reaf, personal, or mixed, provided that, at all times,

the commission shall- avoj-d any appearance of impropriety.
(i) Sell, convey, mortgage, pl-edge, lease, exchange,

Page27 of46

CODING: Words stri€ken are deletions; words undedined are additions.

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

703

704

705

106

101

708

109

110

177

172

1L3

1L4

715

1L6

1L1

718

779

720
-t2L

122

123

124

125

126

121

128

abandon, or otherwise dispose of any property, whether real,
personal, or mixed.

(i) Est.abl-ish a budget and make expenditures.
(k) Borrow money.

(1) Appoint committees, including advisorlz committees

comprised of administrators, state nursing regufators, state
fegislators or their representatives, consumer representatives,
and other i-nterested persons.

(m) Provide lnformation to, receive information from and

cooperate with l-aw enforcement agencies.
(n) Adopt and use an official seal.
(o) Perform such other functions as may be necessary or

appropriate to achieve the purposes of this compact consistent
with the state regul-ation of nurse licensure and practice.

(B) Re]ating to the financing of the commission, the

commission:
(a) Shal-l pay, or provide for the payment of , the

reasonabl-e expenses of its establishment, organization, and

ongoing activities.
(b) May also l-evy and coll-ect an annual assessment from

each party state to cover the cost of its operations,
activities, and staff in i-ts annua] budget as approved each

year. The aggregate annual assessment amount, if any, shall be

allocated based on a formula to be determined by the commission,

which shall adopt a rul-e that is binding on all party states.
(c) May not lncur obl-igations of any kind before securing

Page 28 of 46

CODING: Words s+ieke+ are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

129

730

13\
132

733

734

735

136

131

738

139

140

14L

142

143

144

145
'7 46

141

148

149

750

157

152

753

154

the funds adequate to meet the same; and the comrnission may not

pledge the credit of any of the party states, except by and with

the authority of such party state.
(d) Shall keep accurate accounts of al-I receipts and

disbursements. The commission's receipts and disbursements are

subject to the audit and accounting procedures establ-ished under

its bylaws. However, all receipts and disbursements of funds

handled by the commission shall be audited yearly by a certified
or licensed pubfic accountant, and the report of the audit shalf

be included in, and become part of, the commission's annual

report.
(9) Relat.ing to the sovereign immunity, defense, and

indemnlfication of the commission:
(a) The administrators, officers, executive director

empfoyees, and representatives of the commission are immune from

suit and liability, either personally or in their official
capacity, for any claim for damage to or loss of property or

personal injury or other civil liabil-it.y caused by or arising
out of any actual or afleged act, error, or omission that
occurred, or that the person against whom the claim is made had

a reasonable basis for befieving occurred, within the scope of
commission employment, duties, or responsibi-l-it j-es . This

paragraph does not protect any such person from suit or
Iiability for any damage, loss, inlury, or l-iabil-ity caused by

the intentional, wilffuf, or wanton misconduct of that person.

(b) The'commission shall defend any administrator,

Page 29 of 46

CODING: Words striek€s are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

officer, executive director, empl-oyee, or representative of the
commission in any civil- action seeking to impose liability
arj-sing out of any actual or alleged act, error, or omission

that occurred within the scope of commi-ssion empl-oyment, dutles,
or responsibj-Iities or that the person against whom the cl-aim is
made had a reasonabl-e basis for believing occurred within the
scope of commission employment, duties, or responsj-billties,
provided that the actual- or al-l-eged act, error, or omission did
not 'resul-t from that person's intentionaf , willful, or wanton

misconduct. This paragraph does not prohibit that person from

retaining his or her own counsel.
(c) The commission shal-I indemnify and hold harmless any

admj-nj-strator, officer, executive director, employee, or
representative of the commission for the amount of any

settlement or judgment obtained agaj-nst that person arising out

of any actual- or al-l-eged act, error, or omission that occurred
within the scope of commission emp.l-oyment, duties, or
responsibilj-ties or that such person had a reasonable basis for
believj-ng occurred withj-n the scope of commj-ssion empl-oyment,

duties, or responsibj-lities, provided that the actual- or all-eged

755

756

151

758

159

160

16].

162

763

164

165

166

167

168

169

110

117

712

t13
114

115

116

711

118

119

780

act, error, or omission did not result from the intentional
wiIlful, or wanton misconduct of that person.

ARTICLE V]]]
RULEMAKING

(1) The commission shall- exercise its rulemakj-ng powers

pursuant to the criteria set forth in this articl-e and the rules

Page 30 of 46

CODING: Words s{fi€ke* are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

18r
182

783

784

785

786

787

7BB

189

190

197

192

193

194

'7 95

196

191

198
'199

800

801

802

803

804

805

806

adopted thereunder. Rules and amendments become binding as of
the date specified in each rul-e or amendment and have the same

force and effect as provisions of this compact.

(2) Ru]-es or amendments to the rul-es shal-l be adopted at a

regular or special- meeting of the commission.
(3) Before adoption of a final rul-e or final rul-es by t.he

commissj-on, and at least 60 days before the meeting at which the
rule wil-I be considered and voted upon, the commission shal-l
file a notice of proposed rulemaking:

(a) On t.he commission's website.
(b) On the website of each licensing board or the

pub.l-ication in which each state would otherwise publish proposed

rules.
(4) The notice of proposed rul-emaking shall- include:
(a) The proposed time, date, and locatlon of the meeting

in which the rule wifl be considered and voted upon.

(b) The text of the proposed rule or amendment and the
reason for the proposed rule.

(c) A request for comments on the proposed rul-e from any

interested person.
(d) The manner in which an interested person may submit

notice to the commi-ssion of his or her intention to attend the
publj-c hearing and any written comments.

(5) Before adoption of a proposed rule, the commission

shall allow persons to submit written data, facts, opinions, and

arguments, which shalf be made available to the public.

Page 31 of46

CODING: Words s$icke& are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

807

BOB

809

810

811

8L2

813

814

815

816

8L7

B1B

819

820

827

822

OZJ

824

825

826

821

B28

829

830

831

832

(6) The commission shall grant an opportunity for a public
hearing before it adopts a rul-e or amendment.

(7) The commission shal-l- pub]ish the place, time, and date

of the schedul-ed public hearing.
(a) Hearings shall- be conducted in a manner providing each

person who wishes to comment a falr and reasonable opportunity
to comment orall-y or in writing. A11 hearings will be recorded,

and a copy will- be made available upon request.
(b) This article does not require a separate hearing on

each rule. Rul-es may be grouped for the convenience of the
commission at hearings required by thi-s articfe.

(B) If no interested person appears at the publ-ic hearing,
the commission may proceed with adoption of the proposed ruIe.

(9) Eol]owing the scheduled hearing date, or by the cl-ose

of business on the scheduled hearing date if the hearing is not
held, the commission shall consider aII written and oral
comments received.

(10) The commission shall-, by majority vote of all
administrators, take final action on the proposed rul-e and shall
determine the effective date of the rul-e, if any, based on the
rulemakj-ng record and the full text of the rufe.

(11) Upon determination that an emergency exist.s, the
commission may consider and adopt an emergency rul-e without
prior notice, opportunj-ty for comment, or hearing, provided that
the usual rulemaking procedures provided in this compact and in
this article shall be applied retroactively to the rul-e as soon

Page 32 of 46

CODING: Words strklke* are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 201 6

as reasonabl-y possible within 90 days after the effective date

of the rule. Eor the purposes of this subsection, an emergency

rule i-s one that must be adopted immediatel-y in order to:
(a) Meet an imminent threat to public heal-th, safety, or

wel fare;
(b) Prevent a loss of commission or party state funds; or
(c) Meet a deadline for the adoption of an administrative

rul-e that is required by federal law or rul-e.
(12) The commission may direct revisj-ons to a previously

adopted rule or amendment for purposes of correcting
typographical- errors, errors in format, errors in consistency,
or grammatical errors. Publ-ic notice of any revisions shall- be

posted on the commission's website. The revision is subject to
chal-lenge by any person for 30 days after posting. The revision
may be chall-enged only on grounds that the revision resufts in a

material change to a rule. A chall-enge must be made j-n writing
and del-ivered to the commission before the end of the notice
period. If no chall-enge is made, the revisj-on shalf take effect
without further action. If the revi-sion is chal-l-enged, the

revision may not take effect without the commisslon's approval.
ARTICLE IX

OVERSIGHT, D]SPUTE RESOLUTION, AND ENFORCEMENT

(1) Oversight of this compact sha1l be accompllshed by:
(a) Each party state, whi-ch shal-I enforce this compact and

take all- actions necessary and appropriate to effectuate this
compact's purposes and intent.

Page 33 of 46

CODING: Words s+ri€ke+ are deletions; words underlined are additions.

833

834

835

836

837

B3B

839

840

841

aA'')

843

844

845

846

841

B4B

849

850

851

852

853

854

855

855

857
o(oUJU

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 201 6

859

860

861

862

863

864

865

866

861

B6B

869

870

811

812

873

814

875

816

871

878

819

BBO

BB1

BB2

883

BB4

(b) The commission, which is entitled to receive service
of process in any proceeding that may affect the powers,

responsibilitj-es, or actions of the commission and has standing
to intervene j-n such a proceeding f or all- purposes. Failure to
provide service of process in such proceeding to the commission

renders a judgment or order void as to the commj-sslon, thj-s

compact, or adopted rules.
(2) V[hen the commission determines that a party state has

defaulted in the performance of 1ts obligatlons or
responsibilities under this compact or the adopted rules, the
commission shal-l:

(a) Provide written notice to the defaultlng state and

other party states of the nature of the defaul-t, the proposed

means of curing the defaul-t, or any other action to be taken by

the commi-ssi-on.

(b) Provide remedial- training and specific technical-
assistance regarding the default.

(3) If a state in default fail-s to cure the defauft, the
defaul-ting state's membership in this compact may be terminated
upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the administrators,
and al-l- rights, prj-vileges, and benefits conferred by this
compact may be terminated on the effective date of terminatj-on.
A cure of the default. does not rel-j-eve the offending state of
obligations or fiabilities incurred during the period of
default.

(4) Termination of membershlp 1n this compact shall be

Page 34 of 46

CODING: Words s*r€l<e+ are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

imposed only after aff other means of securing compl-iance have

been exhausted. Notice of intent to suspend or terminate sha.If

be given by the comrnission to the governor of the defaulting

state, to the executive officer of the defaulting state's

licensing board, and each of the party states.
(5) A state whose membership j-n this compact is terminated

is responsib,l-e for al-l assessments, obligations, and liabilities

incurred through the effective date of termination, including

obfigations that extend beyond the effective date of
termination.

(6) The commission shall- not bear any costs rel-ated to a

state that is found to be in defau]t or whose membershlp in this

compact is terminated unless agreed upon in writing between the

commission and the defaulting state.
(7) The defaulting state may appeal the action of the

commission by petitioning the United States District Court for

the District of Columbia or the federal di-strict in which the

conunission has its principal offices. The prevailing party shall

be awarded alf costs of such litigation, incfud.ing reasonable

attorney fees.
(B) Dispute resolution may be used by the commission 1n

the following manner:

(a) Upon request by a party state, the commission shall
attempt to resofve disputes related to the compact that arise
among party states and between party and nonparty states.

(b) The commisslon s

Page 35 of 46

CODING: Words s+r+eke* are deletions; words underlined are additions.

BB5

886

BB7

BBB

889

890

891

892

893

894

B9s

896

891

898

899

900

901

902

903

904

905

906

901

908

909

910

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 201 6

9tt
912

913

9]-4

915

976

971

918

919

920

92r

922

923

924

925

926

921

928

929

930

931

932

933

934

935

936

mediation and binding dispute resolution for disputes, as

appropriate.
(c) In the event the commission cannot resolve disputes

amonq party states arj-sing under this compact:

1. The party states may submj-t the issues in dispute to an

arbitration paneI, which will- be comprised of individual-s
appointed by the compact administrator in each of the affected
party states and an individual mutually agreed upon by the
compact administrators of afl the party states involved in the

dispute.
2 . The decision of a maj ority of the arbitrators is flnal

and binding.
(9) (a) The commission shall-, in the reasonabl-e exercise of

its discretion, enforce the provisions and rules of thi-s

compact.

(b) By majority vote, the commission may initiate 1eqa1

actlon in the United States District Court for the District of
Columbi-a or the federal district in which the commissi-on has its
principal offices against a party state that is in defaul-t to
enforce compliance wj-th this compact and its adopted rul-es and

bylaws. The rel-ief sought may inc]ude both injunctive relief and

damages. In the event judicial enforcement is necessary, the
prevailing party shal-l- be awarded all costs of such ]-itigation,
incl-uding reasonable attorney fees.

(c) The remedies provided in this subsection are not the
exclusive remedies of the commission. The commj-ssion may pursue

Page 36 of 46

CODING: Words s{ieke+ are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

any other remedies avail-able under federal or state 1aw.

ARTICLE X

EFEECT]VE DATE, WITHDRAWAL, AND AMENDMENT

( 1 ) This compact becomes effective and binding on the date

of legislative enactment of this compact into law by no fewer

than 26 states or on December 31, 2078, whichever occurs first.
A11 party states to this compact which were also parties to the

prior Nurse Licensure Compact ("prior compact"), superseded by

this compact, are deemed to have withdrawn from the prior

compact within 6 months after the effective date of this
compact.

(2) Each party state to this compact sha.l-l continue to
recognize a nurse's multistate licensure privifege to practice
in that party state issued under the prior compact until such

party state is wj-thdrawn from the prior compact.

(3) Anv partv state may withdraw from this compact by

enacting a statute repeal-ing the compact. A party state's
withdrawal does not take effect until 6 months after enactment

of the repea.l- j-ng statute.
(4) A partv sLaLe's withdrawal or terminati-on does not

affect the continuing requirement of the wj-thdrawing or

terminated state's llcensing board to report adverse actions and

slgnificant investigations occurring before the effective date

of such withdrawal- or termination.
(5) This compact does not lnvalidate or prevent any nurse

l-icensure agreement or other cooperative arrangement between a

Page 37 of 46

CODING: Words str+;k€+ are deletions; words undedined are additions.

931

938

939

940

947
o/)

o,4 ?

944

945

946

941

948
qlq

950

951

952

953

954

955

9s6

951

958

959

960

967

962

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

party state and a nonparty state that is made in accordance with

the other provisions of this compact.

(5) This compact may be amended by the party states- An

amendment to this compact does not become effective and bindlng

upon the party states unless and untll it is enacted into the

Iaws of aII party states.
(7) Representatives of nonparty states to this compact

shall be invited to participate in the activities of the

commission, on a nonvoting basis, before the adoption of this

compact by all- party states.

963

964

965

966

96'7

968

969

910

91L

912

913

974

915

916

911

918

919

980

981

982

983

984

985

986

981

9BB

ARTICLE XI

CONSTRUCT]ON AND SEVERAB]LITY

This compact shal-l- be fiberally construed so as to

effectuate the purposes thereof. The provisions of this compact

are severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, or provision

of this compact is declared to be contrary to the constj-tution
of anv partv state or of the United States, or if the

applicabil-ity thereof to any government, agency, person, or

circumstance is held invalid, the validj-ty of the remainder of

this compact and the applicabil-ity thereof to any government,

aqencv, person , or circumstance is not af fected thereDy-r--Illh,f e

compact is declared to be contrary to the constitution of any

party state, the compact shal-l- remain in fulf force and effect

as to the remaining party states and in full force and effect as

to the partv state af fected as to al-l- severable matters.
Section B. Subsection (1) of section 464.072, Fforida

Page 38 of 46

CODING: Words s*i€ke+ are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 201 6

989

990

991

992

993
qql

99s

996

991

998

999

1000

10 01

7002

1003

1004

1005

1006

1007

1008

1009

1010

1011

L072

1013

1014

Statutes, is amended to read:

464.072 Certification of advanced registered nurse

practitioners; fees.-
(1) Any nurse desiring to be certified as an advanced

registered nurse practitioner shal-I apply to the department and

submlt proof that he or she hol-ds a current l-icense to practice
professiona.l- nursing or hofds an active multistate license to
practice professional nurslng pursuant to s. 464.0095 and that
he or she meets one or more of the following requirements as

determined by the board:
(a) Satisfactory completion of a formal postbasic

educational program of at Ieast one academic year, the primary
purpose of which is to prepare nurses for advanced or
specialized practice.

(b) Certification by an appropriate specialty board. Such

certification shall be required for initial state certification
and any recertification as a registered nurse anesthetj-st or
nurse midwife. The board may by rul-e provide for provisional-
state certification of graduate nurse anesthetists and nurse

midwives for a period of time determined to be appropriate for
preparing for and passing the natj-onal certification
exami-nation.

(c) Graduation from a program leading to a master's degree

in a nursing clinical specialty area with preparation in
speciallzed practitioner skil-ls. Eor applicants graduating on or
after October 7, 1998, graduation from a master's degree program

Page 39 of 46

CODING: Words $tsckes are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 201 6

1015

101 6

1017

1018

101 9

1020

702L

1022

7023

L024

7025

L026

L021

7028

L029

1030

10 31

L032

1033

1034

1035

1036

10 37

1038

1039

1040

shal-I be required for initial- certification as a nurse

practitioner under paragraph (a) (c). For applicants graduating

on or after October 1-, 200I, graduation from a master's degree

program shall be required for initial- certificatlon as a

registered nurse anesthetist under paragraph (4) (a).

Section 9 . Subsect. j-ons (1) , (2) , and (9 ) of section
464.075, Fl-orida Statutes, are amended to read:

464.015 Titles and abbreviations; restrictions; penalty.-
(1) OnIy a person per$e+s who holds a l-icense in this

state or a multlstate license pursuant to s. 464.0095 h€id
&4eeases to practice professional nursing i-n--+hi-s--s+atre or who

performs a.l=e--pei*+erm-i+q nursing services pursuant to the

exception set forth in s. 454.022 (B ) may

use the title "Registered Nurse" and the abbreviation "R.N. "

(2) Only a person pffisefts who holds a l-icense in this
state or a mul-tistate license pursuant to s. 464.0095 h'oid

}ieerses to practice as a l-icensed practj-cal- nurse n+r::seri-ft

t+i€--€+a+-e or who performs a-re--per+.effi*ag practical nursing
services pursuant to the exception set forth in s. 464.022(B)

may use the title "Licensed Practical
Nurse" and the abbreviation "L.P.N."

(9) A person may not practice or advertise dsr or assume

the titl-e af, registered nurse, licensed practical nurse,

cl-inical- nurse specialist, certified registered nurse

anesthetist, certified nurse midwife, or advanced registered
nurse practitioner or use the abbreviatj-on "R.N.," "L.P.N.,"

Page 40 of 46

CODING: Words s+ieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 061 -00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

1041

1042

1043

7044

1045

]-046

70 41

1048

7049

1050

10 51

1,052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057

1058

1059

10 60

10 61

1062

10 63

t0 64

10 65

7066

ttc.N.S.r" "C.R.N.A.rtt ttc.N.M.rtt or t'A.R.N.P.tt or take any other
actj-on that woufd l-ead the public to bel-i-eve that person was

authorlzed by law to practice eerbiF*ed as such or is performing

nursing services pursuant to the exception set forth in s.

464.022 (B)z unless that person is licensed, * certifled, or

authorized pursuant to s. 464.0095 to practice as such.

Section 10. Subsections (1) and (2) of section 464.0L8,

Elorida Statut.es, are amended to read:

464.078 Discipllnary actions.-
(1) The folJ-owing acts constitute grounds for denial of a

l-i-cense or disciplinary action, ds spec j-f ied in ss. tu
456.072(2) and 464.0095:

(a) Procuring, attempting to procure, or renewing a

l-icense to practj-ce nursing or the authority to practice
practical or professional- nursing pursuant to s. 464.0095 by

bribery, by knowing misrepresentations, or through an error of
the department or the board.

(b) Having a l-icense to practice nursj-ng revoked,

suspended, or otherwise acted against, including the denial of
licensure, by the licensing authority of another state,
territory, or country.

(c) Being convicted or found guilty of, or entering a plea

of guilty or nolo contendere to, regardless of adjudication, a

crime in any jurisdiction which direct.ly relates to the practice
of nursing or to the ability to practice nursing.

(d) Being convicted or found gullty of, or entering a pl-ea

Page 41 of46

CODING: Words s$r€ke+ are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

7061

1068

1069

1070

1071

707 2

1073

L01 4

1075

701 6

L01 7

1078

r01 9

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1085

1087

lOBB

1089

1090

10 91

]-092

of guilty or nol-o contendere to, regardless of adjudication, .e+

any of the following offenses:
1. A forcible felony as defined in chapter 716.

2. A violation of chapter 872, relating to theft, robbery,
and related crimes.

3. A viol-ation of chapter 8Ll , relating to fraudul-ent
practices.

4. A viol-ation of chapter 800, relating to lewdness and

indecent exposure.

5. A viol-ation of chapter '784, relating to assault,
battery, and culpable negligence.

6. A viol-ation of chapter B2'7 , relating to chil-d abuse.

1 . A viol-ation of chapter 4L5, relati-ng to protection f rom

abuse, neglect, and exploltation.
B. A violation of chapter 39, relating to child abuse,

abandonment, and neglect.
9. For an appli-cant for a multistate license or for a

multistate licensehol-der under s. 464.0095, a felony offense
under Florida l-aw or federa] criminal law.

(e) Having been found guilty of, regardless of
adjudication, or entered a plea of nolo contendere or gullty to,
any offense prohibited under s. 435.04 or similar statute of
another jurisdiction; or having committed an act which

consti-tutes domestic violence as defined in s. 74L.28.
(f) Making or f11ing a fal-se report or record, whlch the

nurse Lieens.ee knows to be false, intentionally or negligently

Page 42 of 46

CODING: Words s+i{*e+ are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1 061 -00



10 93

1094

10 95

1096

L091

10 9B

1099

110 0

1101

LLO2

110 3

110 4

110 5

110 6

110 7

110 B

110 9

1110

1111

LL72

1113

7L74

1115

L7t6
7r71

1118

FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 201 6

failing to file a report or record required by state or federal
1aw, willfuI1y impeding or obstructing such fili-ng or inducing
another person to do so. Such reports or records shall include
only those which are signed in the nurse's capacity as a

licensed nurse.
(g) False, frisleading, or deceptive advertising.
(h) Unprofessional conduct, ds defined by board rufe.
(i) Engaging or attempting to engage in the possession,

sale, or distribution of control-Ied substances as set forth in
chapter 893, for any other than legitimate purposes authorized
by this part.

(j) Belng unabl-e to practice nursing with reasonable skill-
and safety to patients by reason of illness or use of a1cohol,

drugs, narcotics, or chemical-s or any other type of material or

as a resuft of any mental or physical conditj-on. In enforcing
this paragraph, the department shall- have, upon a finding of the

State Surgeon General- or the State Surgeon General's designee

that probable cause exj-sts to believe that the nurse #i-ee*see is
unable to practice nursing because of the reasons stated in thls
paragraph, the authority to issue an order to compel a nurse

#ieensee to submit to a mental or physical examinatlon by

physicians designated by the department. If the nurse Lleetsee
refuses to comply with such order, the department's order

directing such examination may be enforced by filing a petition
for enforcement in the circuit court where the nurse *ieen-see

resides or does business. The nurse #ieen-see against whom the

Page 43 of 46

CODING: Words s{fl€ke* are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 201 6

111 9

LL2O

IL2T

7122

Lt23

Lt24

LL25

tL26

LL21

tL28

tL29

113 0

1131

L732

113 3

113 4

113 5

113 6

tL3'7

113 B

113 9

114 0

7747

Lt42

7]-43

7144

petition is fil-ed shal-l- not be named or identified by initials
in any public court records or documents, and the proceedings

shall be cl-osed to the public. The department shall be entitled
to the summary procedure provided in s. 51.011. A nurse affected
by @ this paragraph sha1l at reasonable

intervals be afforded an opportunity to demonstrate that she or
he can resume the competent practi-ce of nurslng with reasonable

skill- and safety to patients.
(k) Failing to report to the department any person who the

nurse Liee+see knows is in viol-ation of this part or of the
rules of the department or the board; however, if the nurse

J-ieersee verifles that such person is actively participating in
a board-approved program for the treatment of a physical or
mental condition, the nurse l$eensee is required to report such

person only to an impaired professional-s consultant.
(1) Knowingly violatlng any provision of this part, a rule

of the board or the department, or a lawful order of the board

or department previously entered in a disciplinary proceeding or
failing to comply with a lawfu1ly issued subpoena of the
department.

(m) Eailing to report to the department any licensee under

chapter 458 or under chapter 459 who the nurse knows has

violated the grounds for disciplinary actlon set out in the l-aw

under which that person is l-icensed and who provides health care

services in a facility licensed under chapter 395, or a heal-th

maintenance organization certj-ficated under part I of chapter

Page 44 of 46

CODING: Words s+ieke+ are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1061-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB'1061 2016

114 5

7]-46

LL41

114 B

L749

115 0

1151

LL52

115 3

115 4

1155

115 6

1157

115 B

115 9

1160

7L6I

7L62

1163

tL64

1t_ 65

L766

tL61

1168

tL69

IL1 O

64I, in which the nurse al-so provides services.
(n) Failing to meet minimal standards of acceptable and

prevailing nursing practice, includi-ng engaging in acts for
which the nurse liee**ee is not qualified by training or
experr_ence.

(o) Violating any provision of thj-s chapter or chapter
456, or any rules adopted pursuant thereto.

(2) (a) The board may enter an order denying licensure or
imposing any of the penalties in s. 456.012(2) against any

applicant for ficensure or nurse H-ee*see who is found guilty of
violatinq aftlF-pre{tus-.i€F--e€ subsection ( 1 ) etr-+hi-s-s.eet-t-en or w.he

s. 456.012(l).
(b) The board may take adverse action against a nursers

multistate l-icensure privilege and impose any of the penalties
in s. 456. 072 (2 ) when the nurse is found guil-ty of vj-olating
subsection (1) or s. 456.072(1).

Section 11. Paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of section
464.0195, Florida Statutes, is amended, and subsection (4) is
added to that section, to read:

464.0L95 Florida Center for Nurslng; goa1s.-
(2) The primary goals for the center shall be to:
(a) Develop a strategic statewide plan for nursing

manpower in this state by:
1. Establishing and maintaining a database on nursing

supply and demand in the state, to include current supply and

demand ; aad

Page 45 of 46

CODING: Words stri€ke* are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1 061 -00



771 7

771 2

117 3

7t1 4

117 5

L71 6

rt11
117 8

77'7 9

118 0

1181

7tB2

118 3

118 4

FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1061 2016

2. Analyzing the current supp]-y and demand in the state
and making future projections of such, inc]-uding assessing the
impact of this state's participation j-n the Nurse Licensure
Compact under s. 464.0095; and

3_:-Z- Selecting from the plan priorities to be addressed.

(4) The center may request from the board, and the board

must provide to the center upon its request, any information
held by the board regardj-ng nurses l-icensed in this state or
holding a multistate license pursuant to s. 464.0095 or
information reported to the board by employers of such nurses,

other than personal identifying informatlon.
Section 12. This act shall take effect December 37, 2018,

or upon enactment of the Nurse Licensure Compact into 1aw by 26

states, whichever occurs first.

Page 46 of 46

CODING: Words s+rieke* are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 061 -00



J-
@

o
o\w



BILL #: HB 1063
SPONSOR(S): Pigman
TIED BILLS: HB 1061

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

Public Records and Meetings/Nurse Licensure Compact

IDEN./SIM. BILLS:

REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIREGTOR or

BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF

1) Select Committee on Affordable Healthcare
Access

Calamas$V

2) Government Operations Subcommittee

3) Health & Human Services Committee

SUMMARY ANALYSIS
HB 1063 authorizes Florida to become a party state to the Nurse Licensure Compact (NLC or compact) enacting its provisions
into the laws of the state. The NLC is a multistate compact that establishes a mutual recognition system for the iicensure of
registered nurses and licensed practical or vocational nurses. The NLC requires states to submit nurse licensure and regulation
records, including any actions taken against the ability to practice, to a coordinated licensure information system. The NLC also
requires a commission to be formed to oversee the implementation and administration of the compact and the coordinated
licensure information system.

The bill, which is linked to passage of HB 1061, creates public record and public meeting exemptions for certain records and
meetings relating to the NLC.

The bill makes personal identifying information of nurses obtained pursuant to compact and held by the Department of Health or
Board of Nursing exempt from the public record requirements, unless the laws of the state that originally reported the information
authorizes its disclosure.

The bill also creates a public meeting exemption for commission meetings, if the commission must discuss:

o Noncompliance of a party state with its obligations under the NLC;
o The employment, compensation, discipline, or other personnel mafters, practices, or procedures related to

speciflc employees or other matters related to the Commission's internal personnel practices and procedure;o Current, threatened, or reasonably anticipated litigation;
o Contract negotiations for the purchase or sale of goods, services, or real estate;o Accusing a person of a crime or formally censuring a person;
o Disclosure of trade secrets or commercial or financial information that is privileged or confidential;o Disclosure of information of a personal nature where disclosure would constitute a clearly unwarranted

invasion of personal privacy if disclosed to the public;
o Disclosure of active investigatory records compiled for law enforcement purposes;
o Disclosure of information related to any reports prepared by or on behalf of the commission for the purpose of

investigation for compliance with the NLC;
o Matters specifically exempted from disclosure by federal law or the laws of any party state; ando lnformation made exempt pursuant to the rules or the bylaws of the commission, which would protect the

public's interest, the privacy of individuals, and proprietary information.

The bill provides that the public record and public meeting exemptions are subject to the Open Government Sunset Review Act
and wif l stand repealed on October,2,2021, unless saved from repeal by reenactment by the Legislature. lt also provides a
public necessity statement as required by the State Constitution.

The bill will have an indeterminate, negative fiscal impact on the Department of Health.

The bill will be effective on the same date as HB 1061 or similar legislation takes effect.

Article I, s. 24(c) of the State Gonstitution requires a two-thirds vote of the members present and voting for final
passage of a newly created public record or public meeting exemption. The bill creates public record and public
meeting exemptions; thus, it appears to require a two-thirds vote for final passage.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h1 063.SCAHA.DOCX
DATE:114120'tG



FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECTOF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Current Situation

Public Records Law

Article l, s. 24(a) of the State Constitution sets forth the state's public policy regarding access to
government records. The section guarantees every person a right to inspect or copy any public record
of the legislative, executive, and judicial branches of government.

Public policy regarding access to government records is addressed further in the Florida Statutes.
Section 119.07(1), F.S., guarantees every person a right to inspect and copy any state, county, or
municipal record.

Public Meetinos Law

Article l, s. 24(b) of the State Constitution sets forth the state's public policy regarding access to
government meetings. The section requires that all meetings of any collegial public body of the
executive branch of state government or of any collegial public body of a county, municipality, school
district, or special district, at which official acts are to be taken or at which public business of such body
is to be transacted or discussed, be open and noticed to the public.

Public policy regarding access to government meetings also is addressed in the Florida Statutes.
Section 286.011, F.S., known as the "Government in the Sunshine Law" or "Sunshine Law," further
requires that all meetings of any board or commission of any state agency or authority or of any agency
or authority of any county, municipal corporation, or political subdivision, at which official acts are to be
taken be open to the public at all times.l The board or commission must provide reasonable notice of
all public meetings.2 Public meetings may not be held at any location that discriminates on the basis of
sex, age, race, creed, color, origin or economic status or which operates in a manner that unreasonably
restricts the public's access to the facility.3 Minutes of a public meeting must be promptly recorded and
open to public inspection.a

Public Record and Public Meetinq Exemptions

The Legislature, however, may provide by general law for the exemption of records and meetings from
the requirements of Article l, s.24(a) and (b) of the State Constitution. The general law must state with
specificity the public necessity justifying the exemption (public necessity statement) and must be no
broader than necessary to accomplish its purpose.5

Furthermore, the Open Government Sunset Review Act6 provides that a public record or public meeting
exemption may be created or maintained only if it serves an identifiable public purpose. ln addition, it
may be no broader than is necessary to meet one of the following purposes:

. Allows the state or its political subdivisions to effectively and efficiently administer a
governmental program, which administration would be significantly impaired without the
exemption;

1 Section 286.011(1 ), F.S.
'tbid.
3 Section 286.011(6), F.S.
a Section 286.011(2), F.S.

: Art. I, s. 24(c), Fla. Const.
o Section 1 19.15, F.S.
STORAGE NAM E: h 1 063.SCAHA.DOCX
DATE:11412016

PAGE:2



. Protects sensitive personal information that, if released, would be defamatory or would
jeopardize an individual's safety; however, only the identity of an individual may be exempted
under this provision; or

o Protects trade or business secrets.

The Open Government Sunset Review Act requires the automatic repeal of a newly created exemption
on October 2nd of the fifth year after creation or substantial amendment, unless the Legislature
reenacts the exemption.

Nurse Licensure Compact

HB 1061 authorizes Florida to become a party to the Nurse Licensure Compact (NLC or compact) by
enacting its provisions into Florida law. The NLC is a multistate compact that establishes a mutual
recognition system for the licensure of registered nurses (RNs) and licensed practical or vocational
nurses (LPN/LVN). The primary purposes of the NLC is to address the expanded mobility of nurses and
the use of advanced communication technologies, such as telemedicine.

The Department of Health (DOH) licenses nurses and the Board of Nursing regulates the practice of
nursing in this state. The NLC establishes uniform requirements for the issuance of a multistate license.
States retain the right to establish additional qualifications for licensure and to issue single-state
licenses, which allows the holder to practice only in the state of issuance. The state in which a nurse is
a permanent resident is considered the nurse's home state and the nurse is subject to the home state's
licensure and regulation.

Under the compact, a nurse who holds a multistate license issued by one of the party states is
permitted to practice in any other party state, without obtaining a license from that state. A nurse
practicing under the multistate licensure practice privilege must comply with the practice laws of the
state in which he or she is practicing or where the patient is located.

Under the NLC, the party states are required to report all adverse actionsT taken against a nurse's
license or a nurse's multistate licensure practice privilege; any current, significant investigative
information that has not yet been acted upon; and denials of applications and reasons for such denials;
and nurse participation in alternative programst to a coordinated licensure information system. Only
party states have access to information related to ongoing investigations and participation in alternative
programs. A party state may designate information it reports as confidential and therefore, cannot be
shared with nonparty states or other entities without the express permission of the reporting state.

The compact also creates the lnterstate Commission of Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators
(commission) to oversee and administer the provisions of the NLC. Each party state has one
administrator, the head of the licensing board, who is a member of the commission. The compact
details the authority and responsibilities of the commission, such as the promulgation of rules, the
oversight of fiscal matters, the mediation of conflict between party states, and the management of
noncompliant party states,

Effect of Proposed Ghanges

The bill creates public record and public meeting exemptions related to the Nurse Licensure Compact.

Specifically, the bill provides that personal identifying information of nurses obtained from the
coordinated licensure information system held by the DOH or Board of Nursing is exempt from the

'Adverse action is any administrative, civil, equitable, or criminal action permitted by a state's laws which is imposed by a licensing
board or other authority against a nurse, including actions against an individual's license or multistate licensure privilege, such as
revocation, suspension, probation, monitoring of the license, limitation on the licensee's practice, or any other encumbrance on
licensure affecting a nurse's authorization to practice, including issuance of a cease and desist action.
" An alternative program is a non-disciplinary monitoring program approved by a licensing board.
STORAGE NAME: h1063.SCAHA.DOCX pAGE:3
DATE:11412016



public record requirements, unless the laws of the state that originally reported the information
authorizes its disclosure. Disclosure under such circumstance is limited to the extent permitted under
the laws of the reporting state.

The bill also creates a public meeting exemption for those portions of the commission meetings during
which the following is discussed:

. Noncompliance of a party state with its obligations under the NLC;
o The employment, compensation, discipline, or other personnel matters, practices, or procedures

related to specific employees or other matters related to the commission's internal personnel
practices and procedure;

. Current, threatened, or reasonably anticipated litigation;
o Contract negotiations for the purchase or sale of goods, services, or real estate;
o Accusing a person of a crime or formally censuring a person;
o Disclosure of trade secrets or commercial or financial information that is privileged or

confidential;
o Disclosure of information of a personal nature where disclosure would constitute a clearly

unwarranted invasion of personal privacy if disclosed to the public;
o Disclosure of active investigatory records compiled for law enforcement purposes;
o Disclosure of information related to any reports prepared by or on behalf of the commission for

the purpose of investigation of compliance with the NLC;
o Matters specifically exempted from disclosure by federal law or the laws of any party state; and
o lnformation made exempt pursuant to the rules or the bylaws of the commission, which would

protect the public's interest, the privacy of individuals, and proprietary information.

The NLC requires the commission to keep minutes of any closed meeting. The bill provides that any
recordings, minutes, and records are exempt from public records requirements. The NLC provides that
such minutes may be disclosed pursuant to a majority vote of the commission or pursuant to a court
order.

The bill provides that the public record and public meeting exemptions are subject to the Open
Government Sunset Review Act and will stand repealed on October 2,2021, unless saved from repeal
by reenactment by the Legislature.

The bill provides a public necessity statement as required by the State Constitution, which states the
exemptions are necessary for the state's effective and efficient implementation and administration of
the provisions of the Nurse Licensure Compact, which requires such exemptions.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1: Creates s.464.0096, F.S., relating to public records and meetings exemptions for records
and meetings relating to the Nurse Licensure Compact.

Section 2: Provides a public necessity statement.
Section 3: Provides a contingent effective date.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

STORAGE NAM E: hl 063.SCAHA.DOCX
DATE:11412016

PAGE:4



The bill may create an insignificant, negative impact on the DOH because staff responsible for
complying with public record requests may require training related to the public record exemption.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

!!I. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONALISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

Not applicable. This bill does not appear to affect county or municipal governments.

2. Other:

Vote Requirement
Article l, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution requires a two-thirds vote of the members present and
voting for final passage of a newly created public record or public meeting exemption. The bill
creates new exemptions; thus, it requires a twothirds vote for final passage.

Public Necessitv Statement
Article l, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution requires a public necessity statement for a newly created
or expanded public record or public meeting exemption. The bill creates new exemptions; thus, it
includes a public necessity statement.

Exemption Bills
Article l, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution provides that an exemption must be created by general law
and the law must contain only exemptions from public record or public meeting requirements. The
exemption does not appear to be in conflict with the constitutional requirement.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

The bill does not appear to create a need for rule-making or rule-making authority.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/ COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

STORAGE NAM E: h 1 063.SCAHA.DOCX
DATE:11412016

PAGE:5



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1063 201 6

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

B

9

10

11

L2

13

L4

15

t6
7'7

1B

L9

20

2L

aaZ.Z

Z)

24

25

26

A bill to be entitled
An act relatj-ng to public records and meetings;

creating s. 464.0096, F.S.; providing an exemption

from public records requirements for certain

information held by the Department of Heal-th or the

Board of Nursing pursuant to the Nurse Licensure

Compact; authorLzLng disclosure of the j-nformation

under certain circumstances; provi-ding an exemption

from pubtic meeting requlrements for certain meetings

of the Interstate Commi-ssion of Nurse Licensure

Compact Administrators; providing an exemption from

public records requirements for recordings, minutes,

and records generated during the closed portion of

such a meetj-ng; providing for future legislative

review and repeal of the exemptions; providing a

statement of publi-c necessity; providing a contingent

effective date.

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

section 1. section 464.0096, Fl-orida Statutes, is created

to read:
454.0096 Nurse Licensure Compact.; pubfic records and

meetings exemptions.-
( 1 ) A nurse's personal identifying information obtained

from the coordinated l-icensure informatj-on system, as defined in

Page 1 of 6

CODING: Words s+ri€kee are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1063-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

2016

)1

2B

29

30

31

32

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

4T

42

43

44

AE9J

46

41

4B

49

50

51

52

HB 1063

s. 464.0095, and hel-d by the department or the board is
confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I
of the State Constitution unless the state that originally
reported the information to the coordinated l-icensure
information system authorizes the disclosure of such information
by l-aw. Under such circumstances, the information may onl-y be

disclosed to the extent permitted by the reporting state's law.
(2) (a) a meetins or portion of a meetinq of the fnterstate

Commissj-on of Nurse Licensure Compact Administrators established
under s. 464.0095 during which any of the fol-lowing is discussed

is exempt from s.286.011 and s.24(b), Art. I of the State
Constitution:

1. Eailure of a party state to comply with its obligations
under the Nurse Licensure Compact.

2. The emp]oyment, compensation, discipl-lne, or other
personnel- matters, practices, or procedures related to specific
empl-oyees or other matters related to the commission's internaf
personnel practices and procedures.

3. Current, threatened, or reasonably anticipated
l-ltigation.

4. Negotiation of contracts for the purchase or sale of
goods, services, or real estate.

5. Accusing any person of a crime or formall-y censuring
any person.

6. Trade secrets as defined in s. 688.002 or commercial or
financial informatlon required by the commisslon's bylaws or

Page 2 of 6

CODING: Words s+r€ke* are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 063-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1063 2016

53

CAJ1

55

56

51

5B

59

60

6t

62

63

64

65

66

61

5B

69

10

17

12

13

14

15

76

11

1B

rules to be kept privileged or confidential.
7. Information of a personal nature which the commission

determines by majority vote would constitute a cl-earl-y

unwarranted invasion of personal privacy if discfosed to the

public.
B. Active investigatory records compiled for law

enforcement purposes. Eor the purposes of this subparagraph, the

term "active" has the same meanj-ng as provided in s.

119.011(3) (d) .

9. Information rel-ated to any reports prepared by or on

behalf of the comrnission for the purpose of investigation of

compfiance with the Nurse Licensure Compact.

10. Information made confldentj-al or exempt pursuant to

federal Iaw or pursuant to the laws of any party state.

11. Information made exempt pursuant to rufes or byfaws of

the comrnission, which would protect the publicrs interest and

the privacy of individuals, and proprietary information.
(b) Recordinqs, minutes, and records generated during an

exempt meeting are confidentiaf and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and

s. 24 (a), Art. I of the State Constitution.
(3) This section is subject to the Open Government Sunset

Review Act in accordance with s. 119.15 and shafl stand repealed

on October 2, 2021, unl-ess reviewed and saved from repeal

through reenactment by the Legislature.
Section 2. (1) The Legisl-ature finds that it is a publlc

necessity that a nurse's personal- identj-fying information

Page 3 of 6

CODING: Words s*reke* are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1063-00



19

BO

B1

B2

B3

B4

B5

B6

B7

BB

B9

90

100

101

L02

103

104

97

92

93

a/

95

96

97

9B

99

FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1063 2016

obtained from the coordinated l-icensure information system, as

defined in s. 464.0095, El-orida Statutes, and held by the

Department of Health or the Board of Nursing be made

confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1), Florida Statutes, and

s. 24(a), Article I of the State Constj-tution. Protection of
such information j-s requj-red under the Nurse Licensure Compact,

which the state must adopt in order to become a party state to
the compact. Without the publ-ic records exemption, this state
will be unable to effectively and efficiently implement and

admj-nister the compact.

(2) (a) The Legislature finds that it is a public necessity
that any meeting or portion of a meeting of the Interstate
Commission of Nurse Lj-censure Compact Administrators established
under s. 464.0095, Elorida Statutes, at which any of the

fo]lowing is discussed be made exempt from s. 285.011, Florida
Statutes, and s. 24(b), Article I of the State Constitution:

1. Fai-lure of a party state to comply with its obligations
under the Nurse Licensure Compact.

2. The employment, compensation, dj-sciplj-ne, or other
personnel matters, practices, or procedures related to specific
employees or other matters rel-ated to the commlssion's internal
personnel pract.ices and procedures.

3. Current, threatened, or reasonably anticipated
litigation.

4. Neqotlation of contracts for the purchase or sal-e of
goods, services, or rea.l- estate .

Page 4 of 6

CODING: Words stri€ke+ are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb1 063-00



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1063 2016

105

105

107

108

109

110

111

7L2

113

774

115

116

771

118

119

720

).21

!22

L23

124

L25

726

727

L2B

L29

130

5. Accusin erson of a crime or formall censurrn

any person.

6. Trade secrets as defined in s. 588.002, Fforida

Statutes, or commercial or financial information required by the

commission's bylaws or rules to be kept privileged or

confidential.
7. Tnformation of a personal nature which the commission

determj-nes by mai ority vote would constitute a clearly

unwarranted invasion of personaf privacy if disclosed to the

public.
B. Active j-nvesti-gatory records compiled for law

enforcement purposes.

9. Information related to any reports prepared by or on

behalf of the comrnission for the purpose of investigation of

compfiance with the Nurse Lj-censure Compact.

10. fnformation made confidentiaf or exempt pursuant to

federal law or pursuant to the laws of any party state.

11. Information made exempt pursuant to rules or bylaws of

(b) The Nurse Llcensure Compact requires any meetj-ng or

portion of a meeting in which the substance of paragraph (a

discussed to be cfosed to the public. Without the public meeting

exemption, thls state wifl be prohibited from becoming a party

state to the compact. Thus, this state wiff be unable to

effectively and efficiently administer tit9-Sempes!-=-

Page 5 of 6

CODING: Words striokes are deletions; words underlined are additions.

the commission, which woul-d protect the public's interest,
privacy of indi-viduals, and proprietary information-

hb1063-00



131

L32

133

734

135

135

r31

138

139

140

L4L

742

FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

2016HB 1063

(3) The l,eqislature also finds that it is a public

necessity that the recordings, minutes, and records generated

during a meeting that is exempt pursuant to s. 464.0096, Florida

Statutes, be made confidential and exempt from s. 119-07(l-),

Florida Statutes, and s. 24(a), Article I of the State

Constitution. Release of such information would negate the

public meeting exemption. As such, the Legislature finds that

the public records exemption is a public necessity.
Section 3. This act shal-l- take ef f ect on the same date

that HB 1061 or similar legislation takes effect, Lf such

legislation is adopted in the same legislative session or an

extension thereof and becomes a law.

Page 6 of 6

CODING: Words s*i{*e+ are deletions; words underlined are additions,

hb1 063-00



C9

95
C<
sE'

il[
aro
o



Dr. Vivian Lee - University of Utah Health Care

Since 2011, Dr. Vivian S. Lee has served as Senior Vice President for
Health Sciences at the University of Utah, Dean of the University's School
of Medicine, and CEO of University of Utah Health Care. She oversees an
annual budget of $3.3 billion; four hospitals, ten health centers, the
Huntsman Cancer lnstitute and Moran Eye Center, a health insurance
plan, over 1,330 board-certified physicians; and five colleges including the
Schools of Medicine and Dentistry and the Colleges of Nursing, Pharmacy
and Health.

During her tenure, Dr. Lee has established the University of Utah Health
Care system as one of the most innovative, high-performing, and transformative health care
systems in the nation. lt has consistently ranked in the top 10 in quality and safety among
university hospitals. lts providers enjoy the highest patient satisfaction rankings in the nation, and
Utah was the first health care system in the country to post patient satisfaction scores online. The
health system has bent the cost curve through innovative value management tools, physician
engagement and Lean training.

Under Dr. Lee's leadership, the University of Utah launched a new School of Dentistry in 2013.
The Utah Genome Project, based on the Utah Population Database, is the cornerstone of
Precision Medicine with an expected 6000 genomes sequenced by the end of 2015. The Center for
Medical lnnovation partners the health sciences with Colleges of Engineering, Business, Law, Fine
Arts, and Architecture to develop new devices, apps and videogames.

Working with the legislature and Governor, Dr. Lee secured additional state funding in 2013 to
increase the medical school class size by 50% over 2 years. Enhanced communications and best
practices have been shared through the Algorithms for !nnovation publication and portal, sparking
a national discourse about challenges facing academic medicine.

A recognized leader in academic medicine and health sciences, Dr. Lee serves on the Council of
Councils of the National lnstitutes of Health, the Administrative Board of the Council of Deans for
the AAMC, the Journal of the American Medical Association Journal Oversight Committee, the
Health Care Delivery System Reform Advisory Committee of The Commonwealth Fund, and the
Scientific Advisory Board of Massachusetts General Hospital. She also serves on the board of
directors the American Association of Rhodes Scholars.

A graduate of Harvard-Radcliffe College, Dr. Lee received a doctorate in medical engineering on a
Rhodes Scholarship at Oxford University. At Harvard Medical School, she earned her M.D. with
honors. She completed her residency in Diagnostic Radiology at Duke, where she also served as
Chief Resident and trained as a fellow in MRI at NYU. Dr. Lee completed an M.B.A. at NYU's Stern
School of Business in 2006. Prior to coming to Utah, she served as the inaugural Vice Dean for
Science, Senior Vice-President and Chief Scientific Officer of New York University Medical Center.

A radiologist who is currently principal investigator for two NIH R01 grants, Dr. Lee has authored
over 150 peer-reviewed research publications and a popular textbook on Cardiovascular MRI and
chaired the Medical lmaging NIH study section. A Fellow and past President of the lnternational
Society for Magnetic Resonance in Medicine (ISMRM), Dr. Lee received the Outstanding Teacher
Award and delivered the ISMRM keynote Lauterbur Lecture in2012. Elected to the American
Society for Clinical lnvestigation, Dr. Lee's research focuses on the development of quantitative
functional MRI for the improved understanding of physiology and disease.



New York Times

What Are a Hospital's Costs? Utah System Is Trying to Learn
http://www.nytimes.com/2015/09/08/health/what-are-a-hospitals-costs-utah-svstem-is-trvine-toJearn.html? r:0

By GINA KOLATA
SEPT.7,2OI5

Dr. Vivian Lee set in motion a process that the University of Utah Health Care is using to save money and
to improve care. Credit Sallie Dean Shatz for The New York Times

SALT LAKE CITY - Only in the world of medicine would Dr. Vivian Lee's question have seemed radical.
She wanted to know: What do the goods and services provided by the hospital system where she is chief
executive actually cost?

Most businesses know the cost of everything that goes into producing what they sell - essential information
for setting prices. Medicine is different. Hospitals know what they are paid by insurers, but it bears little
relationship to their costs.

No one on Dr. Lee's staff at the University of Utah Health Care could say what a minute in an M.R.I. machine
or an hour in the operating room actually costs. They chuckled when she asked.

But now, thanks to a project Dr. Lee set in motion after that initial query several years ago, the hospital is
getting answers, information that is not only saving money but also improving care.

The effort is attracting the attention of institutions from Harvard to the Mayo Clinic. The secretary of health and
human services, Sylvia Mathews Burwell, visited last month to see the results. While costs at other academic
medical centers in the area have increased an average of 2.9 percent a year over the past few years, the
University of Utah's have declined by 0.5 percent ayear. "We have bent the cost curve," Dr. Lee said.

Inpatient hospital costs account for nearly 30 percent of health care spending in the United States and are
increasing by a little less than 2 percent ayear, adjusted for inflation, according to the federal Agency for
Healthcare Research and Quality.



The cost issue has taken on new urgency as the Affordable Care Act accelerates the move away from fee-for-
service medicine and toward a system where hospitals will get one payment for the entire course of a treatment,
like hospitalization for pneumonia. Medicare, too, is setting new goals for payments based on the value of care.

Under such a system, if a hospital does additional tests and procedures or if patients get infections or are

readmitted, the hospital bears the cost. To make money, medical centers have to figure out what it actually costs
to provide care and how to spend less while maintaining or improving outcomes.

The linchpin of this effort at the University of Utah Health Care is a computer program - still a work in
progress - with 200 million rows of costs for items like drugs, medical devices, a doctor's time in the
operating room and each member of the staff s time. The software also tracks such outcomes as days in the
hospital and readmissions. A pulldown menu compares each doctor's costs and outcomes with others' in the
department

The hospital has been able to calculate, for instance, the cost per minute in the emergency room (82 cents), in
the surgical intensive care unit ($1.43), and in the operating room for an orthopedic surgery case ($12).

With such information, as well as data on the cost of labor, supplies and labs, the hospital has pared excess

expenses and revised numerous practices for more efficient and effective care.

Michael Porter, an economist and professor at Harvard Business School, called the accomplishments "epic
progress."

Recently, Dr. Porter and a colleague, Robert Kaplan, visited Utah and concluded that the hospital group was
one of the few in health care to properly measure the costs of care. Elsewhere, with a very few exceptions, Dr.
Porter said, "it's a total mess."

Other medical institutions, including MD Anderson Cancer Center in Houston and the Mayo Clinic, based in
Rochester, Minn., are also trying to get a handle on costs.

"I can give you an unambiguous endorsement" of the Utah system, Dr. Russell M. Howerton, chief medical
officer at Wake Forest Baptist Health in North Carolina, said after a recent visit.

It is not easy, said Dr. Thomas W. Feeley, who is leading the effort at MD Anderson. His group decided to go
through every single process a patient experiences and figure out what the hospital paid for each person caring
for the patient.

The group began with head and neck cancer, treatment of which turned out to involve 160 processes requiring
measurement. To assess outcomes, it asked patients which they thought were most important. Head and neck
cancer patients wanted to be able to talk and to swallow. (Survival, which many doctors had thought was a top
priority, was not something patients raised; many assumed they would survive.)

At the Utah hospital, the group began by looking at how much supplies cost - bandages, sutures, medications.
Then it started tracing use of those items to individual patients.

"Let's say I need a hip replacement," said Dr. Robert C. Pendleton, Utah's chief quality officer. "Well, how
many bandages did you use for me, and how many did you use for the guy in the bed next to me and the lady in
the next room who also had hip replacements?

"Then you can start to say, 'Well, wait a minute, patients who have their hips replaced by Dr. Jones are using
twice as many bandages. Why is that?' "



They added in labor costs, a more complicated question. Dr. Kaplan and Dr. Porter of Harvard tell hospitals to
go in to hospital rooms with a stopwatch and time how long each staff member spends on each procedure and

with each patient.

At the Mayo Clinic, the stopwatch is changing practices. Instead of having doctors in the emergency department
type in notes on each patient, for example, the clinic has started a pilot project in using lower cost scribes do

that work.

With their new computer program, executives at the Utah hospital are also finding some simple ways to
improve outcomes and reduce costs.

When internal medicine doctors looked at their costs per day, they were stunned to see how much they were
spending on lab tests. Each was cheap, $10 or $20, but the total bill came to about $2 million ayear.

Studies have found that20 percent to 50 percent of hospital lab tests were completely unnecessary, ordered by
residents with no questions asked. Most insurers were paying a lump sum for patients' treatment so the cost for
extra tests was borne by the hospital. Patients were getting so many blood tests that some became anemic.

The Utah doctors decided to require residents to justify each lab test. Orders plummeted. The hospital saved

$200,000 ayear.

Changes also involved bypass surgery in a project led by Dr. David A. Bull, chief of cardiothoracic surgery at
the University of Utah. He and his colleagues asked what variables made a difference in costs and outcomes,
hoping to improve both.

That led them to nine measures they called "perfect care," the primary determinants of how long a patient stays

in the hospital after surgery, which is a major contributor to costs and a harbinger of poorer outcomes.

The variables included such practices as keeping blood sugar under control - 7 5 percent of their bypass
patients had diabetes - and giving oxygen to patients who are having trouble breathing when they are taken off
the ventilator. The usual quality measures, like giving antibiotics before surgery, did not affect length of stay.

The group standardized the care after surgery with those nine items in mind, and nurses were permitted to give
medications or oxygen without having to contact a doctor first.

Some were skeptical the program would make a difference, Dr. Bull said. But costs fell by 30 percent because
patients spent less time in the hospital and had fewer complications. Letting nurses initiate treatment meant
patients got needed medications faster, and the emphasis on "perfect care" meant the most important things got
done.

"When I first started working in health care, like everybody I thought: 'Oh, my God. It's such a tough problem,'
" Dr. Porter, the Harvard economist, said.

Now he has changed his mind. 'oI have no doubt we can solve it," he said. "We know exactly what we have to
do.'



CONTROLLING 
costs in health care 

VIVIAN S. LEE, M.D., Ph.D., M.B.A.  
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT, UNIVERSITY OF UTAH HEALTH SCIENCES 

CEO, UNIVERSITY OF UTAH HEALTH CARE 
DEAN, UNIVERSITY OF UTAH SCHOOL OF MEDICINE 

 
 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



UNIVERSITY 
Who is the 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 

of Utah… 



EDUCATION 

School of Medicine 
College of Nursing 
College of Pharmacy 
College of Health 
School of Dentistry 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 

$3.2 BILLION 
Expense Budget FY15 

50% 
GROWTH 
IN 4 YEARS 

1.4 MILLION 
Patient Visits 

$270 Million+ Grants in FY2015 

2,500 Peer-Reviewed Papers 

810+ Grants Received 2015 

1 
NCI Comprehensive 
Cancer Center 

DISCOVERY ACCESS 

4 Hospitals 

11  
Community 

Clinics 

15 
Regional 
Partners 

10% 
of the  

Continental 
U.S. 

1,380 Physicians 



UTAH HAS THE BEST HEALTH AT THE LOWEST COST 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 

$7,635 



HOW WE THINK ABOUT VALUE 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



HOW WE THINK ABOUT QUALITY 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



HOW WE THINK ABOUT SERVICE 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



HOW WE THINK ABOUT SERVICE 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



WE FIGURED OUT OUR COSTS 

© Vivian S. Lee, 2015 @vivianleemd 

You 
Don’t 
Want 

to 
Know 

$396 

$47 



Laboratory 

Supply 

Pharmacy 

Diagnostic Imaging  

Other 

Operating Room Utilization 

Accommodation 

VALUE DRIVEN OUTCOMES 

© Vivian S. Lee, 2015 @vivianleemd 

Cost  
Type Groupings 

 



Labor 
Supplies 
Imaging 

Pharmacy 
Lab 

Other Services 

Labor 
Supplies 

Other Services 

Labor 
Supplies 

Pharmacy 
Lab 

Labor 
Supplies 

Other Services 

VALUE DRIVEN OUTCOMES –APPENDECTOMY 

© Vivian S. Lee, 2015 @vivianleemd 

Emergency 
Department 

10:54am 

IMCU 
6:59pm 

SICU 
Surgical ICU 

2:16am 

SSTU Surgical Specialty & Trans. Unit 
3:25pm 

10:54am - Day 1 Day 2 Day 3 Day 4 – 1:45pm 

IMCU Intermediate Care Unit 
1:30pm 

OR 
9:46 to 
10:48 

Emergency 
Department 

Operating 
Room 

Surgical ICU 

Step down 
and Floor 

Units 

Total Cost of 
Providing Patient 

Care 
= 



VALUE DRIVEN OUTCOMES 

© Vivian S. Lee, 2015 @vivianleemd 



DATA FOR FRONT LINE PROVIDERS 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



DATA FOR FRONT LINE PROVIDERS 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 

Produce Scorecards 



QUALITY GOES UP AND COSTS GO DOWN 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



QUALITY GOES UP WITHOUT INCREASED COSTS 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 

ADHERENCE 
TO 

DEVELOPED 
PROTOCOLS 



VDO: OPERATING ROOM EFFICIENCY 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 

Supplies/Implants 

Labor 

Anesthesiology 

Pre-Op Care Post-Op Care Equipment 

Space 

Key Operating 
Room Areas 



HOW WE THINK ABOUT COST 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



HOW WE DELIVER VALUE 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



& 
@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 

ENGAGING 
PROVIDERS 

ENGAGING 
PATIENTS 



CREATING VALUE FOR THE PATIENT 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



CREATING VALUE FOR THE PATIENT 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



SHARING AND GROWING 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



SHARING AND GROWING 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



THANK 
you 

VIVIAN S. LEE, M.D., Ph.D., M.B.A.  
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT, UNIVERSITY OF UTAH HEALTH SCIENCES 

CEO, UNIVERSITY OF UTAH HEALTH CARE 
DEAN, UNIVERSITY OF UTAH SCHOOL OF MEDICINE 

 
 

@vivianleemd © Vivian S. Lee, 2015 



tb
e€
11To='

=oo!
=o

o



Josephine Porter

Josephine Porter, MPH, serves as lnterim Director for the lnstitute for
Health Policy and Practice in the College of Health and Human Services

at the University of New Hampshire. ln this role, she has oversight

responsibility across IHPP, and does project specific work in the Health

Analytics and lnformatics focus area. She serves as co-chair of the

national All-Payer Claims Database Council (APCD Council:

www.apcdcouncil.org), a learning network for state APCD development.

Jo's background includes several years of health care-related project management and program

development experience in the private and public sectors.

Her research interests are in health data collection and dissemination, and using data to

effectively improve health care quality.

She completed her education with a Bachelor of Science in Microbiology, Health Management

and Policy, University of New Hampshire and a Master of Public Health in

Epidemiology/Biostatistics and Social and Behavioral Health, Boston University.



All Payer Claims Databases: An 
Overview 

1/11/2016 

Presentation to the Florida House of 
Representatives:  

Select Committee on Affordable 
Healthcare Access 



About Us 

About the APCD Council 
 

The APCD Council is a learning 
collaborative of government, private, 
non-profit, and academic 
organizations focused on improving 
the development and deployment of 
state-based all payer claims 
databases (APCDs). The APCD 
Council is convened and coordinated 
by the Institute for Health Policy and 
Practice (IHPP) at the University of 
New Hampshire (UNH) and the 
National Association of Health Data 
Organizations (NAHDO).  

 

Our Work 
 

• Early Stage Technical Assistance 
to States 

• Shared Learning 

• Catalyzing States to Achieve 
Mutual Goals 

 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  2 



APCD Definition 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  3 

Databases, created by state mandate, that 

typically include data derived from medical, 

pharmacy, and dental claims with eligibility 

and provider files from private and public 

payers:  

– Commercial insurance carriers 

(medical, dental, TPAs, PBMs)  

– Public payers (Medicaid, Medicare) 



 
Typical APCD Data Sets 
 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  4 

PR
O

V
ID

ER
 F

IL
E 

ELIG
IB

ILITY
 FILE 

Commercial / TPAs / 
PBMs / Dental / Medicare 

Parts C & D 

Medicaid FFS / Managed 
Care / SCHIP 

Medicare Parts A & B 

FUTURE:  

TRICARE & VA & IHS & 
FEHB 

APCD 



 
September 2015 State Progress Map 
 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  5 



 
Framework for APCD Development 
 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  6 

• For more information, please see the APCD Development Manual:  
http://www.apcdcouncil.org/manual.  



Engagement 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved. 
 

7 

Key Considerations 

Defining APCD Vision 

• Define purpose 

• Identify information needs across stakeholder 
groups 

• Drives data use 

Stakeholder Engagement 

• Inclusiveness 

• Guides implementation 

• Broad representation 



Engagement  

Stakeholder Key Interests in APCD 

Policy Makers 
May be a “champion” of the APCD program; 

Inform policy, payment, and health care reforms 

Payers Data suppliers and technical/content experts 

Providers How the data will be used 

Employers Costs of health services; Price transparency 

State Agencies 
Governance and use issues; Medicaid applications 

Leveraging existing infrastructure 

Consumers Informed choices, pricing 

Researchers Access to and use of data 

HIE/HIX 
Supplement clinical/benefits data with claims; 

Consumer support tools; Rate review 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  8 



Governance 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved. 
 

9 

Key Considerations 

APCD Legislation 

• Mandatory & voluntary approaches 

Data Collection 

Data Release 

• Reporting Requirements 

Rules and Regulations 



State Led Public-Private Private Non-profit 

State agency led; policy 
development informed by 
multi-stakeholder advisory 
committee 
 

Initial planning led by state 
agency; day-to-day 
operations delegated to 
private non-profit, selected 
by the state 
 

Private, voluntary reporting 
initiatives 
 

Kansas, Maine, 
Massachusetts, Maryland, 
Minnesota, New 
Hampshire, Oregon, 
Tennessee, Utah, Vermont, 
W. Virginia, Rhode Island, 
Connecticut, New York, 
Washington 
 

Colorado, Virginia, 
Arkansas, Washington (in 
implementation) 

Wisconsin, California 

State Approaches to Governance 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  10 



Funding 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  11 

Key Considerations 

Funding Estimates 

• Cost drivers and considerations 

• Start-up & sustainability 

Funding Sources 

• General appropriations 

• Fee assessments 

• Medicaid match 

• Federal/state/local grants 

• Data sales 

 



Technical Build 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  12 

Key Considerations 

Technical Considerations 

• Alignment with payer capabilities 

Standards, Data Elements, Format 

Data Quality Assurance 

• Tests for data completeness, continuity 

RFP Development 

APCD Enhancements 

• Non-claims based payments and supplemental 
fields 

 

 



Analysis and Applications Development 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  13 

Key Considerations 

Analytic Plan 
• Balancing availability, utility, and privacy 

Technical Advisory Group Roles 

APCD Reporting & Measurement 

• Meeting multiple user needs 

• Adopting staged or tiered approaches to public 
reporting 

Data Use & Release 

• Data product development mapped to user needs 

• Web-based reporting tools 

 



Feedback Loops and Continuous Engagement  

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  14 

Key Considerations 

Continuous Engagement 

• Initial and evolving vision 

• Reflection of stakeholder values 

• Ongoing commitment of staff and resources 

Key Success Factors 

• Inclusiveness 

• Transparent and open process 

• Managing stakeholder expectations 

• Feedback loop 

 



STATE EXPERIENCES AND LESSONS 
LEARNED 

APCD use cases are maintained at the APCD Showcase, 
www.apcdshowcase.org  

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  15 



State Use Case Examples 

© 2009-2015, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved. 16 

APCDs are filling critical information gaps for 

state agencies 

•Understanding overall and categorical costs for care 

(e.g., CO, NH, ME, VT, UT, MA, MD) 

•Consumer tools (e.g., MA, NH, ME) 

•Intrastate cost variation (e.g., CO, ME, NH, VT) 

•Benchmarks for purchasers (e.g., NH) 

•Medical home evaluation (e.g., VT, NH) 

•Accountable care – regional cost profiles (e.g., NH) 



State Use Case Examples 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  

APCD Reporting and Measurement  

8 17 



Virginia Health Information: Health Care Prices 

18 © 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  

Source: http://www.vhi.org/health_care_prices.asp 



Colorado Medical Price Compare 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  19 

Source: www.comedprice.org 



NH HealthCost 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  20 

Source: http://nhhealthcost.nh.gov/ 



CompareMaine 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  21 

Source: www.comparemaine.org 



Vermont Blueprint for Health, HSA Profiles 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  22 

Source: http://blueprintforhealth.vermont.gov/node/680 



CO Total Cost of Care Reporting 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  23 

Source: https://www.nahdo.org/sites/nahdo.org/files/Conference/Annual_30/8.45%20Mathieu%20slides.pdf 



NH Accountable Care Project 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  

Source: www.nhaccountablecare.org 
9 24 



MN Potentially Preventable Health Care Events 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  25 

Source: http://www.health.state.mn.us/healthreform/allpayer/potentially_preventable_events_072115.pdf 



MA Health Care Enrollment Trends 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  26 

Source: http://www.chiamass.gov/assets/Enrollment-Trends-Brief.pdf 



CO Emergency Department Initiative  

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  27 

Source: http://civhc.org/getmedia/6ee4d98f-a1a1-47af-8352-b62b0a3e8b10/ED-Use-Cost-Driver-Analysis.pdf.aspx/  



Maryland Insurance Dashboard 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  28 

Source: https://www.nahdo.org/sites/nahdo.org/files/Conference/Annual_30/8.45%20Sridhara%20slides.pdf 



Lessons Learned by States 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  29 

• Develop Multi-Stakeholder Approach 

• Form Provider Relationships 

• Form Payer Relationships 

• Be Transparent and Document 

• Understand Uses and Limitations 

• Seize Integration & Linkage Opportunities 

• Develop Use Cases 

• Stage reporting to match APCD capabilities 



Contact Information  

Jo Porter 

Co-Chair, APCD Council 

Jo.Porter@unh.edu 

 

Patrick Miller 

Pero Group/APCD Consultant 

patrick@perogroup.com 

 

Ashley Peters 

Communications and Research, APCD 
Council 

Ashley.Peters@unh.edu 

 

Denise Love 

Co-Chair, APCD Council 

dlove@nahdo.org 

 

Emily Sullivan 

Research, APCD Council 

esullivan@nahdo.org 

 

Amy Costello 

Standards, APCD Council 

Amy.Costello@unh.edu  

 

 

© 2009-2016, APCD Council, NAHDO, UNH. All Rights Reserved.  30 

For redistribution or reproduction of these materials, please see the APCD Council Attribution Policy: 
http://apcdcouncil.org/attribution-policy.  Thank You!   

www.apcdcouncil.org 
www.apcdshowcase.org 
info@apcdcouncil.org 
@APCDCouncil 



>=
-on=

=n5
vl



Healthcare Information 
Transparency   

 
 

Presented by Molly McKinstry, Deputy Secretary 
Agency for Health Care Administration 

 
 

Select Committee on Affordable Healthcare Access 
January 11, 2016 

 
1 



Healthcare Information Collected 
• Regulatory  

– Demographic  
– Services Offered 
– Inspection Results – Reports and Quantified  
– Sanctions Imposed  

• Clients and Services 
– Hospital and Ambulatory Surgery Discharge Data (State) 
– Nursing Home Resident Minimum Data Set (Federal) 
– Home Health Outcome and Assessment Information (Federal) 

• Provide Specific Information 
– Satisfaction Results  
– Staffing  

 
 

2 



Provider Information Available 
FloridaHealthFinder.gov 

• Hospitals 

• Nursing Homes 

• Assisted Living Facilities 

• Home Health Agencies 

• Hospices 

• Ambulatory Surgery Centers 

• Health Care Clinics  

• Laboratories 

• Crisis Stabilization Units 

• Transitional Living Facilities 

• Birth Centers 

• Adult Day Care Centers 

• Health Plans 

• 33 Total Regulated Provider Types  

 

Medicare.gov 

• Hospitals 

• Nursing Homes 

• Assisted Living Facilities 

• Home Health Agencies 

• Medical Equipment Suppliers 

• Health Plans 

3 



Improved Health Care Transparency: 
Enhanced Data Access and Interaction 

The Agency collects, analyzes, and distributes critical 
health care data and information to improve the 
transparency of: 

– Quality Information 

– Patient and Member Satisfaction 

– Health Service Volume, Pricing and Utilization 

– Regulatory and Inspection Information 

4 



 
 

FloridaHealthFinder.gov 
Comparison Tools 

 
 

5 

 Hospitals and Ambulatory Surgery Centers –utilization,               
quality indicators, pricing information, and physician key procedure 
volume 

 Health Plans – quality performance and member satisfaction survey 
results 

 Nursing Homes – performance/inspection ratings and general 
information 

 Assisted Living Facilities – complaints, sanctions and deficiency data 
 Hospice Providers – family satisfaction scores 
 Prescription Drug Prices – www.MyFloridaRx.com 

 

Health Outcome, Pricing and Performance Information for: 



0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

1,600,000

1,800,000

2,000,000

2,200,000

2,400,000

2,600,000

2,800,000

3,000,000

3,200,000

3,400,000

3,600,000

3,800,000

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

6 

Year  
Number of 

Visits 

2015 *3,800,000 

2014 3,295,662 

2013 2,578,443 

2012 1,980,022 

2011 1,820,047 

2010 1,664,872 

2009 1,351,713 

2008 825,764 

*Projected number of visits 

Visits to FloridaHealthFinder.gov  
2008 – 2015* 

 



7 



8 

FloridaHealthFinder.gov 
Facility Locator Smartphone App 

Search by:  
• Facility Type 
• Facility/Provider 

Name 
• Location/Proximity 

– County, City, Zip Code 
• Owner/Administrator 
• License Number 
  



Resources 
 

www.FloridaHealthFinder.gov 
www.Medicare.gov  

  

 
9 



Hospital Information Available Online 
 

Information FloridaHealthFinder.gov Medicare.gov 

Hospitals Displayed 
Acute care Florida-licensed hospitals 
and premise facilities 

Medicare-certified hospitals nationwide 

Ambulatory Surgery Information: 
Freestanding ASC and Hospital based 

Yes – Volume and range of charges No 

Hospital Types Acute Acute, acute Veteran’s Administration  

Comparison Feature/Navigation 
Compare for all facilities 
Search on age–pediatric/deliveries 

Compare up to three facilities 
 

Data Sources/ Methodologies 

 Discharge patient data – all patients 

 HCAHPS (via CMS) 

 National Health Care Safety 
Network/CDC (via CMS) – all 
patients 

 AHRQ patient safety indicators - all 
patients  

 AHCA licensure data 

 Medicare/VA Enrollment/Claims  

 HCAHPS  

 National Health Care Safety 
Network/CDC – all patients 

 AHRQ patient safety indicators - for 
Medicare claims 

 QIO clinical data  

 The Joint Commission 

Facility Information 
Name, Address, County, Phone, 
Mapping/Directions. 

Yes 
Updated nightly as reported for 
licensure 

Yes 
Updated semi-annually or annually 

County, Website, Licensed Bed Count 
and Bed Types, Accreditation 

Yes 
Updated nightly 

No 

Ownership/ Administration: CEO, 
Owner, Ownership Date, Profit Status 

Yes 
Updated nightly 

No 

Emergency Room 
ER Yes or No 
Specific emergency services available 
Updated nightly 

ER Yes or No 
 

Electronic Health Record Status  
No Yes 

Electronic lab results, Patients ability to 
track lab results, tests and referrals 

Patient Safety 
 

No Yes 
Use of Safe Surgery Checklist 

Inspection reports/results 
Yes 
Updated nightly 

No 

Sanctions: Emergency Actions, 
Legal Actions (fines/penalties) 

Yes 
Updated nightly 

No 

Volume  

 150 conditions/procedures 
(including outpatient) – all payers 

 Physician volume 

 Updated quarterly 

 40 conditions/procedures -Medicare 
only 

 Hospital volume only 

 Updated annually  

Length of Stay (LOS) 
Yes 
Updated quarterly 

No 

Pricing Information 

 Charge ranges for 150 conditions & 
procedures (inpatient & outpatient)  

 Compare to hospitals in Florida 

 Updated quarterly 

 Medicare spending per beneficiary for 
heart attack, heart failure, pneumonia  

 Compare to all hospitals Nationally 

 Updated annually  

Survey of Patients' Experiences: 
Hospital Consumer Assessment of 
Healthcare Providers and Systems  

Yes 
Display as stars 
Compare state/nation 
Updated quarterly 

Yes  
Display as stars, percentage, graphs 
Compare state/nation 
Updated quarterly 



Information FloridaHealthFinder.gov Medicare.gov 

Timely and Effective Care Measures 
(Process of Care) 

N/A Yes - 50 measures 
Updated quarterly 

Readmissions 

 15-day potentially preventable 
readmissions 

 84 conditions and procedures and 
overall readmission rate 

 Display as stars 

 Compare to state 

 Updated quarterly 

 30-day all-cause unplanned 
readmission outcomes 

 8 conditions and procedures, and 
overall all-cause unplanned rate 

 Display as Better, No Different or 
Worse than National per Hospital 

 Compare percentage to national 

 Updated annually  

Surgical Complications 
 

Yes (4 measures) 
Display as stars 
Updated quarterly 

Yes (7 measures) 
Display as Better, No Different or Worse 
than national per hospital 
Updated annually 

Infections 
 

Yes 
Display as stars 
Updated quarterly 

Yes  
Displayed as Better, No Different or 
Worse than national per hospital 
Updated quarterly 

Mortality 
During admission 
Procedures (8) and conditions (7) 
Updated quarterly 

30-day mortality outcomes  
Procedures (1) and conditions (5) 
Updated Annually  

Use of Medical Imaging  
No Yes 

Use of medical imaging tests (MRIs and 
CT scans) for outpatients 

 



Health Plan Information Available Online 
 

Information FloridaHealthFinder.gov Medicare.gov 

Health Plans Displayed Commercial, Medicare, Medicaid Medicare Plans 

Plan Information 
Name, Plan Type, Address, 
County, Phone, Mapping/ 
Directions 

Yes 
 

Yes 
 

General Information 
Organization, Address, Phone 

No Yes 

Statewide enrollment, 
Accreditation, Counties 
Available, Website 

Yes No 

Health Plan Costs No 

Monthly health plan premium, 
estimated costs (inpatient care, 
dental services), deductible, total 
estimated annual costs 

Health Plan Drug Costs  No 
Drug premium, estimated costs, 
deductible, total estimated annual 
costs 

Health Plan Benefits  No 
Ambulance, doctors office visits, 
emergency care, skilled nursing 
facility, etc. 

Quality Measures 
HEDIS - breast cancer screening, 
controlling high blood pressure, and 
diabetes care 

No 

Member Satisfaction Measures Referred to Medicare.gov 
Overall star rating (1-5), Prescription 
drug plan summary rating  

Manage Drugs No 
Overview and general requirements 
of medication therapy management 
programs 

 


